(L

COASTAL FiNnaNcIAL CORPORATION

2002
ANNUAL REPORT




SHE s e 5 x : : e
g o 2 e e e S e
% Bk e rmamgmxwgm S g kg
Feri i n % = % e Tayhavm S et b o s
Gt e o et o SR s Bt e
Rt B R S TR e Sop o e
e : St ey

e o5 e e Nou

Eah e 3
R e SRR e =
gse T SR e S

bt ns i "’g"i“am

S et e
g e e ey
e e S

= o
= 5 Fm s i
Hise e s

s s i
Rer ot Bt =

R ;
=

R R
e
s
SR

e A o
SR s

Syt eice o
pred ¥ e

g

S e e e B e o
= - SR = % BT i
e e e Se ey EEmes s T e T
St R e ne e T St S e e e
e == i e e o R
s e

L

: T
e
A

; S e ey
e Ao
= Eroasan o e S SR
g 5 "_' Fas 5 o 2 e

SRR
e Fs e

R
i

= - e g
RO T St e ety -

R

_ o e
& 2 % £ 5 PR YUY 4 TR 25,
ot - 2 ot i : e b s R e B R
i - L e e S e s S pro e o et
3 an 0 G L s = = i e e i S dereH ey i s rach i e o
e g i S o 5 et et DL i = e o 2o
e = “ : i S S 3 ki

e
e
e e e S

e
-

Pedameces
- : i A AR S o

e St Z T Rl e - A e R
o i free e R 5 T e e : S T
V- % ey % = s 5 ~ 7 * TR

o S
e L

T e

S el S et e

e R e e e S
e e SR
S e e
e
o byt itk

L i

neas e
et e b
S

Dt = 2 s b s et
T = i o - T . e - e
A E = Pctiots e e il e Sy

. A e ?ﬁh e

ST iy M

R e

ot

o =
Fisitwesie s R el e S S == ot ;
Sl e e T e ced = e

e - 2 i s e e ST 5 ’rv B

= e : = = : e
et e e s - e e e e Gh e e e o C e
PR S e ot o % ! 7 : &

- = i 5 7 i R

e
S Ty

Tl S e
SRt S s RS e

St - IR 1 Zed

T TR el re e e o SIS e s o S YR D e

SRl e, e S g é St R 2 7 S e : P
el = S e e

=
et B
=

= LT

e -

o
pemE ; g
= S , o 7 S
Temmmion . TEooeSEneEn : : ekt e
e S e, o : e
i

P A ooy

=

s




~ DEDICATION ~

A QUEST FOR EXCELLENCE

1THANKS TO OUR PEOPLE, OUR MISSION, OUR VALUES AND OUR GUIDING PRINCIPLES

U.S.BANKER MAGAZINE HAS RANKED COASTAL FINANCIAL CORPORATION
#1 IN THE CAROLINAS AND #3 IN THE NATION

Over the twelvé years since becoming a publicly owned
company, all of us at Coastal Financial Corporation have
worked diligenﬁly toward achieving our Basic Corporate
Objective of Méximizing The Value Of Our Shareholders
Investment by focusing on our Long-Term Goal of Being

’

The Best Finanéial Services Company In Our Marketplace.
And, over that jperiod of time, we have received contin-
uing evidence 6f progress in those quests.

Related to ouriBasic Corporate Objective Of Maximizing
The Value Of Our Shareholders” Investment:

- The January 3 1994 edition of INVESTORS BUSINESS
DAILY recognized Coastal Financial Corporation’s
shares as haiving the largest price increase of any
bank stock :listed on the New York, American or
Nasdag stock markets during the year ended
December 31, 1993,

Coastal Financial Corporation was listed as #1 in
Return on Eduity for all publicly-held financial insti-
tutions in :North and South Carolina in the
1998/1999 edition of CORPORATE CAROLINA pub-
lished by the editors of BUSINESS NORTH CAROLINA.

- In its November 17, 1998 edition, THE STATE news-
paper publis‘hed an article titled "Myrtle Beach bank
leads US," describing Coastal Financial Corporation
as the natidn’s best savings bank investment this
decade. |

In its November 14, 1999 edition, THE STATE news-
paper published an article titled "Myrtle Beach-based
company is g financial pacesetter — Coastal Financial
is the fasteit growing new public financial services
company of the 1990s."

Coastal Financial Corporation was listed as #1 in
Return on Equity for all publicly-held financial insti-
tutions in North and South Carolina in the
1999/2000 edition of CORPORATE CAROLINA pub-
lished by the editors of BUSINESS NORTH CAROLINA.

- U.S. Banker,!in its July 2000 edition, listed Coastal
Financial Corporation #1 in the Carolinas and #16 in the
nation in terms of earnings per share growth and return
on equity, based on the past three years averaged.

- Coastal Financial Corporation received national

Related to our Long-Term Goal Of Being The Best

attention in the July 2001 edition of U.S. Banker
Magazine. This pubtication featured a listing of the
Community Banking companies in the United States
with assets between $673 million and $1.12 billion,
ranked in order, based upon return on equity and
growth in per share earnings over the past five
years. Coastal Financial placed 1st in the Carolinas
and-5th nationally in these measures.

The July 2002 edition of U.S. Banker Magazine fea-
tured a listing of the Community Banks in the United
States with less than one billion dollars in assets,
ranked in order, based upon return on equity over the
past three years. Coastal Financial Corporation placed
1st in the Carolinas and 3rd nationally in these mea-
sures.

Coastal Financial Corporation was added to the
Russell 2000 Index, and the broader Russell 3000
Index, effective as of July 1, 2002.

Financial Services Company In Qur Marketplace:

The 1997 SHESHUNOFF MARKET SHARE REPORT
ranked Coastal Federal Bank the leader in deposit
market share for Horry County for the twelve
months ended June 30, 1996.

The 1998 SHESHUNOFF MARKET SHARE REPQRTY
ranked Coastal Federal Bank the leader in deposit
market share for Horry County for the twelve
months ended June 30, 1997.

Coastal Federal Bank placed 1st in voting by the
readers of the SUN NEWS in the Financial
Institutions category of the SUN NEWS Best Of The
Beach Competition for 1998.

Coastal Federal Bank placed 1st in voting by the
readers of the SUN NEWS in the Financial
Institutions category of the SUN NEWS Best Of The
Beach Competition for 1999.

- Coastal Federal Bank placed 1st in voting by the

readers of the SUN NEWS in the Financial
Institutions category of the SUN NEWS Best Of The
Beach Competition for 2000.




- Coastal Federal Bank placed 1st in voting by the How does an organization create such superior long-
readers of the SUN NEWS in the Financial
Institutions category of the SUN NEWS Best Of The
Beach Competition for 2001.

term results? We believe that our ever-increasing focus
on our People, our Mission, our Values and our Guiding

Principles has enabled these results.
- The 2002 SHESHUNOFF MARKET SHARE REPORT

ranked Coastal Federal Bank the leader in deposit Our overriding commitment to our QUEST FOR EXCEL-

market share for Horry County for the twelve LENCE Operating Philosophy and our Vision 2005 Plan
months ended June 30, 2001.

has again produced outstanding results for our

- The 2002 FDIC/OTS SUMMARY QF DEPOSITS REPORT
ranked Coastal Federal Bank the leader in deposit
market share for Horry County for the twelve
months ended June 30, 2002, to come.

Shareholders and we are absolutely convinced that this
approach will help to insure that our best years are yet

- Coastal Federal Bank placed 1st in voting by the
readers of the SUN NEWS in the Financial
Institutions and Mortgage Company categories and
Coastal Investor Services, Inc.* placed 1st in the
Financial Planning category of the SUN NEWS Best
Of The Beach Competition for 2002.
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The price of Coastal Financial Corporation’s common stock increased 37.6% since September 30, 2001 and
has grown at a compound annual rate of over 32% since 1990. The foregoing reflects historical results and
may not be indicative of future performance.




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following table sets forth certain information concerning the financial position of the Company (including data from operations of
its subsidian"es) as of and for the dates indicated. The consolidated data is derived in part from, and should be read in conjunction with,
the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries presented herein.

At or for Years Ended September 30,

4 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Financial Cohdition Data:

Total @SSetS. 1t v v et e e it e $ 643,560 § 713,013 § 768,838 § 763,214 $ 950,796
Loans receiv?ble, 3 1=1 Pt 414,264 455,351 511,701 488,754 536,851
Mortgage-backed securities . ......... .. . it 170,181 182,115 189,239 190,553 331,808
Cash, interest-bearing deposits and investment securities ... ... .. 25,507 30,296 25,715 36,320 27,816
Deposits. . ‘ ...................................... 386,321 399,673 406,217 530,364 637,081
BOrmrowings i oo v it e 210,560 262,541 303,151 160,808 228,622
Stockholde(é QUILY . v e 37,851 41,237 46,945 57,248 66,386
Operating D;ata:
Interestincome. . ... .. vttt e § 43,894 $ 49559 $§ 58,079 $ 60,255 $ 53,873
INETESt EXPEMSE & o vt o et ve e e ee et e e e 24,451 26,991 33,636 33,323 21,846
Net interest ;income ................................. 19,443 22,568 24,443 26,932 32,027
Provision forloan losses . . . c. . vttt it i e 865 750 978 955 1,235
Net interest income after provision for loan losses. .. .......... 18,578 21,818 23,465 25,977 30,792
Other Incomie:
Fees and service charges on loans and deposit accounts . .. ...... 1,639 2,025 2,126 2,634 3,148
Gain on sales of loans held forsale. .. ................. ... 1,579 979 631 1,295 1,462
Gain (loss) an sales of investment securities. .. .............. 96 73 (17) (56) 102
Gain (loss) an sales of mortgage-backed securities, net. ... ...... 521 191 (1.554) 727 238
Real estate Operations . .. .v.ovvv e it i 149 (29) (64) (453) (137)
Otherincome . ........ ..o 1,895 2,334 4,759 3,755 3,326
Total OLRer INCOME. .+ v v v vt e et et e i e e 5,879 5,573 5,881 7,902 8,139
Total general and administrative expense . . ... ..., 13,618 15,286 16,191 19,292 22,824
Earnings before income taxes. .. ......... ... ..ol 10,839 12,105 13,155 14,587 16,107
Incometaxes ... 3,987 4,390 4,698 5,287 5,901
NEtinCome ...ttt $ 682 § 7715 § 8457 $§ 9,300 §_ 10,206
Net earnings per common diluted share . . .. ................ $ 60 3 .68 § 75 3 .85 % .93
{
Cash dividends per commonshare. . .. .........v.oueuun... $ 17 0% a7 0% 17 % 19§ .21
Weighted average shares outstanding diluted ... ............. 11,408 11,378 11,216 10,995 10,940

All share arid per share data have been restated to reflect two 4 for 3 stock dividends declared on April 30, 1997 and May 6, 1998, a
5% stock dividend declared on November 10, 1999, a 10% stock dividend declared on March 14, 2000, and a 3 for 2 stock dividend
declared on‘;July 31, 2001.
Key Operatinjg Ratios:
The table below sets forth certain performance ratios of the Company at the dates or for the periods indicated.

' At or for Years Ended September 30,

i 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

Other Data:!
Return on assets (net income divided by average assets) ....... 1.13% 1.14 % 1.13% 1.20% 1.23%
Return on aYerage equity (net income divided by average equity) . 19.52 % 19.30 % 19.52 % 17.75 % 16.92%
Average equity to average assets . .. ... ... ..., 6.05 % 5.93 % 5.80 % 6.59 % 7.29%
Bookvalue pershare . .. ... ... ... . i, $ 349 $ 370 $§ 429 % 5.3 § 6.27
Dividend payout ratio. . v v v et e 25.14% 23.28% 22.61 % 21.58 % 21.77%
Interest rate spread (difference between average yield on interest-earning

assets and average cost of interest-bearing liabilities) ....... 3.51% 3.55% 3.50 % 3.64 % 4.14%
Net interestimargin (net interest income as a percentage of average

interest-earning assets). . .. .. ..o 3.64 % 3.67 % 3.57% 3.77 % 4.24%
Allowance for loan losses to total loans at end of period . . . . ... 1.33% 1.36 % 1.35 % 1.42 % 1.42%
Ratio of non-performing assets to total assets {(1)............ 0.36 % 0.21% 0.73 % 0.74 % 0.48%
Tangible caﬁital 1 1 PN 6.10 % 6.29 % 6.56 % 7.28% 6.57 %
Core capitaliratio. . . oot vt e e 6.10% 6.29 % 6.56 % 7.28 % 6.57 %
Risk-based capitalratio . ......... ... ... . ioiiiat, 12.67 % 12.64 % 12.45 % 13.30 % 12.74%
Number of:

Real estate loans outstanding. .. ............ ... ...... 6,666 6,637 6,748 6,745 6,666

DePOSTt BECOUNS + .+ v v v et ve e e e iee et ie e s e 43,720 41,608 40,788 43,560 46,564

Fult service offices . ... ..o n i 10 10 12 16 18

(1) Nonperforming assets consist of nonaccrual loans 90 days or more past due and real estate acquired through foreclosure.

i




Approximately ten years ago, when we adopted our QUEST FOR
EXCELLENCE Operating Philosophy, we could not have possibly
envisioned the power that could be created by an organization of
exceptional People, who were united by a shared sense of purpose
and mission and who felt a strong bond with our Values and
Guiding Principles. This solid foundation has served to focus our
undivided attention on the development of broad and durable rela-
tionships with our Customers and Communities and has lead to
positive results and impressive returns on a number of different
measures.

Qver that same ten year period, many cultural, economic and social
changes have occurred. And, during the course of the past two
years particularly, many significant events have taken place which
have shaken our nation and the world. At Coastal Financial
Corporation, we have had the same QUEST FOR EXCELLENCE
Operating Philosophy over that ten year horizon, because we oper-
ate our Company from a long-term perspective and focus on doing
the nght things for our Associates, our Customers and our
Communities. It is our strong view that constancy of purpose is
critical to the attainment of our Basic Corporate Objective of
Maximizing The Value Of Qur Shareholders” Investment and Our
Long-Term Goal Of Being The Best Financial Services Company In
Qur Marketplace. The result of this continued focus on our People,
our Mission, our Values and our Guiding Principles is a culture
which has continued to thrive and prosper despite the volatility of
the environment in which we operate. And, I'm happy to report
that, despite the very difficult circumstances for our country and
the world, 2002 was another year of growth and progress that has
enabled us to enter 2003 in a position of strength.

Our never-ending focus on our QUEST FOR EXCELLENCE Operating
Philosophy and Vision 2005 Plan has continued to guide Coastal
Financial Corporation through this sea of ever-increasing change
and has produced another year of exceptional financial results.

Coastal Financial Corporation’s net income for 2002 totaled $10.2
million, compared to $9.3 million in 2001. On a fully diluted basis,
these results equated to a 9.4% increase, from $0.85 per share in
2001 to $0.93 per share in 2002.

The changes in our balance sheet during 2002 continued to reflect
healthy growth with deposits derived from the residents and busi-
nesses of the Communities we serve increasing by approximately
$107 million, or 20%, and loan portfolio growth of 10%. The pri-
mary component of the gains in our loans receivable portfolio was
the significant increase in commercial loans which has resulted
from our strong focus on the Business Banking element of our
operations. Despite the very challenging business environment
resulting from the varied and complex dynamics of this year, asset
quality remained excellent compared to both industry standards
and historical norms.

In addition to our excellent operating results for 2002, which again
met our high expectations, the market price of Coastal Financial's

common stock, at September 30, 2002, was 37.6% higher than the
market price at September 30, 2001.

Equally as impressive is the fact that, since 1990, our operating
earnings have increased at a compound annualized rate in excess
of 17%.

Since becoming a publicly owned company in 1990, Coastal
Financial Corporation’s stock has grown at a compound annual rate
of over 32%, taking our market capitalization from $4.6 million in
October 1990, to $143.4 million at the close of this fiscal year. Put
another way, an initial investment of $10,000 in October of 1990
would have grown to $294,000 at September 30, 2002.

One of the best indicators of performance is Return On
Shareholders’ Equity, and this measure for 2002 was, again, out-
standing. Our Return On Average Shareholders’ Equity of 16.9%
ranks us among the top performing financial services companies in
America.

In addition to our own sense of satisfaction with these financial
results, during 2002, we continued to receive significant public
recognition of our progress toward the attainment of our Basic
Corporate Objective of Maximizing The Value Of Our Shareholders’
Investment and our Long-Term Goal of Being The Best Financial
Services Company In Our Marketplace. Several very good examples
follow:

* Coastal Financial Corporation received national attention in the July 2002
edition of U.S. Banker Magazine. This publication featured a listing of the
Community Banking companies in the United States with assets less than
$1 billion, ranked in order, based upon return on equity over the past
three years. Coastal Financial Corporation placed 1st in the Carolinas and
3rd nationally in these measures.

Coastal Financial Corporation was added to the Russell 2000 Index, and
the broader Russell 3000 Index, effective as of July 1, 2002.

Coastal Federal Bank, for the fifth consecutive year, placed 1st in voting
by the readers of the (Myrtle Beach) SUN NEWS in the Financial
Institutions category of the SUN NEWS Best Of The Beach Competition for
2002.

Coastal Federal Bank placed 1st in voting by the readers of the SUN NEWS
in the Mortgage Company category of the SUN NEWS Best Of The Beach
Competition for 2002.

¢ Coastal Investor Services, Inc. placed 1st in voting by the readers of the
SUN_NEWS in the Financial Planning category of the SUN NEWS Best Of
The Beach Competition for 2002.

The 2002 SHESHUNOFF MARKET SHARE REPORT ranked Coastal Federal
Bank the leader in deposit market share for Horry County for the twelve
months ended June 30, 2001.

The 2002 FDIC/OTS SUMMARY OF DEPOSITS REPORT ranked Coastal
Federal Bank the leader in deposit market share for Horry County for
the twelve months ended June 30, 2002.

We are extremely proud of these forms of recognition because
each, in its own way, represents tangible evidence that our focus
on our People, our Mission, our Values and our Guiding Principles
has been effective in delivering value to all of our stakeholders.

DEAR FRIENDS
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2002 OUR EEST YEAR

The results we exp;erienced during 2002 would have been
impressive even in thje best of market conditions. But following a
year marked by national crisis and consternation, these success
stories have special rheam'ng in affirming what can be achieved
through the ah'gnedjeffort of individuals who are united by a
shared sense of purpbse and mission. Just over two weeks after
the tragedy of September 11, 2001, we began our fiscal 2002 year

and, despite almost unprecedented economic uncertainties,
achieved another year of significant growth and development.
The passion our People have for following the Mission, Values and
Guiding Principles of our QUEST FOR EXCELLENCE Operating
Philosophy has enabled the financial performance during fiscal
2002 which, again, met our high expectations and well positions
us to aggressively pursue future opportunities.

Noteworthy Financial Results for Fiscal 2002:

EARNINGS PER SHARE

o Net income for 2002 totaled $10.2 million, com-
pared to $9.3 million in 2001. On a fully dilut-
ed basis, these results equated to a 9.4%
increase, from $0.85 per share in 2001 to $0.93
per share in 2002,

* Shareholders’ equity advanced 16.0% to $66.4
million. -

BOOK VALUE PéR SHARE

¢ Book vatue per share grew 17.4% to $6.27




2002 OUR BEST YEAR

ASSETS
(IN MILLIONS)
® Deposits derived from the residents and busi- $950.80
nesses of the Communities we serve increased $713.01 $768.84  ¢$763.21
20.1%, from $530.4 million to $637.1 million, $643.56 i

the highest level in the Company’s history.

® Loans receivable increased 10.0%, from
$505.0 million to $555.5 million.

e Total assets increased 24.6%, from $763.2
million to $950.8 million.

NON-PERFORMING ASSETS TO TOTAL ASSETS

¢ Non-performing Assets to Total Assets
declined from 0.74% to 0.48%.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES TO NET LOANS

* Allowance for Loan Losses to Net Loans
remained the same at 1.42%.

¢ The Company had Net Loan Charge Offs as a
percentage of Average Loans of 0.10% in
2002.

Results such as these are possible only through the commitment, dedication and aligned effort of a great team. Our tra-
dition of exceptional performance has been rewarded in the financial markets by a 3,091% increase in the price of our shares
since becoming a public company in October of 1990, vs. 291% for the Standard & Poors 500 Index over the same period.




Since becoming publicly owned twelve years ago, we have
methodically focused our individual and collective efforts on
the attainment of Our Basic Corporate Objective Of
Maximizing The Value Of Our Shareholders” Investment by
making continual progress toward our Long-Term Goal of
Being The Best Financial Services Company In Our
Marketplace. ‘

In considering whether we have made real progress toward
the attainment of Our Basic Corporate Objective during this
peried, it is informative to compare the share price perfor-
mance of Coastal Finangcial Corporation to the share price
performance of other pu“blicly traded financial services com-
panies operating within: our marketplace, and to the finan-
cial markets as a whole.

In the following graphsi we have compared the share price
performance of Coastal Financial Corporation to the Nasdag,
S&P 500 and Dow Indices, and to (TSFG) The South Financial
Group, the parent company of Carolina First Bank, (WB)
Wachovia Corporation, the parent company of Wachovia and
First Union banks, which are being merged, (SNV) Synovus
Financial Corporation, the parent company of NBSC, (BBT)
BBR&T Corporation, the parent company of BB&T, (BAC) Bank
of America Corporation, the parent company of Bank of
America, (FFCH) First Financia[ Holdings, Inc., the parent
company of First Federal Savings and Loan Association of
Charleston and (COOP) Cooperative Bankshares, Inc., the par-
ent company of Cooperative Bank. Their historical results may
not be indicative of future stock price performance.

As demonstrated by these graphic representations, which take
a look back over our history as a publicly owned company, the
price of Coastal Financial Corporation’s shares has signifi-
cantly outperformed the price of the shares of the other pub-
licly traded financial services companies in our marketplace,

CFCP Relative Price Performance

12 Year Peer Group Price Performance
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as well as the Nasdag, S&P 500 and Dow Indices.

We're very pleased with our performance from the past year.
Our 2002 operating and share price performance results clear-
ly put Coastal Financial among the top performing financial
services companies in the nation. Thanks to our long-term
focus on our People, our Mission, our Values and our Guiding
Principles, our business has continued to prosper and our
Associates have flourished, growing both personally and pro-
fessionally as never before. But, as good as these results are,
it's always the future that we are most interested in, and it
always leads to the question we're most often asked: "Can we
keep it up?"

We continue to believe the answer is an unequivocal "Yes," as
long as we remain focused on our QUEST FOR EXCELLENCE
Operating Philosophy and the goals established in our Vision
2005 Plan.
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A LOOK BACK

There is a far eastern adage which is one of my favorites. It is
attributed to the ancient Chinese philosopher Lao-Tzu and it reads,
"Give a man a fish, you feed him for a day; teach him how to fish,
and you feed him for a lifetime."

Over the past ten years, our philosophy of viewing change and con-
stant improvement as essential to the achievement of our long-
term objectives has continuously focused our attention and efforts
on building a workplace environment which could enable our
Leadership Group and Associates to learn those principles which
support the practices we employ in serving our Customers. This
philosophy, which has been the essence of our educational cur-
riculum at Coastal Federal University, and which has been cultivat-
ed and sustained through Leadership example, has served as the
cornerstone for enabling our Associates to grow, both personally
and professionally, toward the attainment of their full potential
and has further leveraged our ever-increasing ability to work
together as a team toward Exceeding the Expectations of our
Customers. We believe this approach has been both fundamental
and essential to assuring that our best days are yet to come.

In looking back at our progress over these years, one might ask
why we have remained so confident that Coastal Financial
Corporation would be prepared to capitalize on future opportuni-
ties? We have long believed that to achieve true success in our
industry an organization had to have competitive advantages in
several key areas: education, corporate culture, geographic loca-
tion, products, distribution channels, sales culture, brand image
and, most importantly, people.

Education: During 2002, we continued to allocate significant
resources to Coastal Federal University in order to ensure that we
continue to advance our philosophy of becoming a learning orga-
nization.

Some time ago, we asked ourselves the following question . . . Why
should we build a learning organization? Why commit ourselves to
a lifelong attempt to understand and shift the ways we think and
behave?

The answer was self evident . . . because we want superior perfor-
mance!

Knowing that Our Basic Corporate Objective is To Maximize The
Value Of Our Shareholders” Investment and that cur Long-Term Goal
is To Be The Best Financial Services Company In Our Marketplace,
it is easy to understand that the primary goal of our educational
initiatives at Coastal Federal University must be to achieve the
proper balance between the personal and professional growth and
development of our Associates and the economic performance of
our organization. The two can never be separated because they are
innately linked.

The reason that we at Coastal Financial Corporation have achieved
superior performance, relative to our Community Banking peers, is

due to our QUEST FOR EXCELLENCE Operating Philosophy. Most
organizations believe that the essence of "management" is to
extract ideas from the heads of the "managers” of their organiza-
tion and place them into the hands of the "employees" of their
organization.

Our Operating Philosophy has, at its core, the goal of marrying the
personal and professional development of every Associate in our
organization with the superior economic performance of our
Company.

It has been our very strong belief that, if we could genuinely
Exceed The Expectations of our Customers by providing exception-
al service and becoming a valued financial and business partner
and, at the same time be a real resource to our Associates and the
Communities we serve, then we could all feel good about the future
of our organization.

In the long run, the only sustainable source of competitive advan-
tage we have is our ability, as an organization, to learn faster than
our competitors and to replace incomplete or obsolete paradigms
with new paradigms which can enable us, both as individuals and
as an organization, to reach our full potential. No outside force can
take the momentum of that advantage away from us.

Without learning about our business, as well as their own tasks, our
Associates cannot make the contributions of which they are capa-
ble. This requires dramatic learning efforts, both for our Associates
who must learn to act in the interest of the whole enterprise and
for our Leadership Group members who must learn how to extend
mastery and self-determination throughout the organization.

If there is one single thing a learning organization does well, it is
helping people embrace change. People in learning organizations
react more quickly when their environment changes because they
know how to anticipate changes that are going to occur (which is
far different than trying to predict the future), and how to create
the kinds of changes they want. We are firmly convinced that,
while change and learning may not exactly be synonymous, they
are inextricably linked.

During 2002, Coastal Federal University’s Dean of Associate
Development and each of the members of our outstanding faculty .
have maintained a strong focus on the effective execution of our
Coastal Federal University Vision 2005 Plan, which is designed to
ensure the continued diversification and expansion of our curricu-
lum in order to keep it truly distinctive to our Associates and our
Community.

We:

¢ made available to our Associates, on a 24/7 basis, 170 courses
through an E-Training and development website addition to the
Coastal Federal Bank intranet channel;

s introduced the Bank Team Service Plus development program;
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A LOOK BACK

* implemented The Account Servicing Degree Of Excellence cur-
riculum offering; |

* in cooperation with the Covey Institute For Learning, added the
What Matters Most course to our curriculum;

¢ delivered over 3,500 credit hours of instruction;

* passed the milestone df having in excess of 70% of our Associates
recorded as graduates ‘of our Pledge To Excellence program; and

s hosted, at Coastal Feéieral University's Conference Center, four-
teen Community seminars featuring a variety of topics from
Financial, Estate and Tax Planning to a lecture by a nationally
renowned Melanoma Cjancer research physician.

CORPORATE CULTURE: Qur success at making continual progress
toward Our Basic Corporate Objective Of Maximizing The Value Of
Our Shareholders’ Investfnent by striving to achieve our Long-Term
Goal of Being The Besti Financial Services In Our Marketplace is
largely a function of maintaining a laser-like focus on Who We Are
and What We Are About?. . . that is, having all of our Associates
clearly understand our Character and our Competency. Maintaining
the necessary balance df Character and Competency enables our
organization to be viewed as Trustworthy, and, therefore, properly
positioned to develop broad and durable relationships with our
Customers. ;

All of us at Coastal Finanicial are unwavering in the values which are
the foundation of our QUEST FOR EXCELLENCE Operating
Philosophy and our Vision 2005 Strategic Plan. Our Values are:
Commitment, Leadership, Integrity and Quality. We do not view
these as mere platitudes hanging on our walls. Rather, we view
them as our Character. ' We absolutely will not compromise these
values under any circumstances.

Our goal is to create an}organization which our Associates believe
is the best possible placé for enabling them to reach their full per-
sonal and professional pdtential. Our Associates deserve a workplace
environment which is inviting, engaging and challenging, while
being a haven from discrimination, harassment and manipulation.
Through Leadership exajmple and curriculum offerings at Coastal
Federal University, our Associates are assured of our commitment to
providing the resources and support needed to further develop their
skills and enable them to reach their full potential. Maintaining an
inviting, engaging and fchallenging environment requires continu-
ous effort and will remain a major focus for 2003.

Our Mission Statement reads: We are Totally Committed To Exceeding
The Expectations Of Our!Customer. We believe that responsive and
consistent Customer service is essential to the attainment of our
long-term goals and téke personal pride in assuring that our
Customers receive nothi}ng less than our best possible service. In
working toward continually raising that bar, during 2002 we intro-
duced the Bank Team !Service Plus development program. This
Customer-centric progrém is an outgrowth of our Mission of

Exceeding The Expectations Of Our Customer and has been the
largest and most formal Customer Service program ever introduced.
Also, during this past year, we reached a milestone in that, for the
first time ever, over seventy percent of our Associates have com-
pleted our Pledge To Excellence curriculum offering at Coastal
Federal University. This intense eight week course fully defines,
illustrates and builds individual support for the type of service orga-
nization we aspire to be. The Associates who have completed this
course feel a sense of ownership and personal responsibility for pro-
viding exceptional service to our Customers.

GEOGRAPHIC LOCATION: We simply could not ask for a better loca-
tion to do business. The four counties in which we distribute finan-
cial services products through our Banking Centers and ATMs include
Horry County, South Carolina, which is the second fastest growing
real estate market in the nation, New Hanover County, North
Carolina, which is ranked fourth in that measure, and the rapidly
growing counties of Georgetown in South Carolina and Brunswick in
North Carolina. We are first in share of banking deposits in Horry
County, South Carolina.

PRODUCTS: Our business lines and wide array of financial services
product offerings makes us much mare than a bank. We are a rapid-
ly growing diversified financial services company.

We offer a full line of Business Banking, Personal Banking,
Residential Banking and Investment Services. And we continue to
add the expertise of outside financial services professionals in an
ongoing effort to provide our Customers with seamless delivery of a
full range of financial products and services.

Coastal Financial Corporation, through Coastal Federal Bank and
Coastal Investor Services, Inc., offers our Customers a comprehen-
sive array of financial services products, including Financial
Planning, Business Banking, Investments, Life Insurance, Trust
Services, Commercial Mortgage Loans, Residential Mortgage Loans,
Home Equity Lines of Credit, Consumer Loans, Commercial Loans,
Venture Capital and Capital Markets Transactions.

DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS: While products are important, they can
easily be copied by competitors. Real Customer value is created in
the way that they are distributed. We have the best locations and
most extensive distribution system in our marketplace.

Through our financial services distribution channels, we offer a full
range of financial services products to each of the Communities we
serve, During 2002, we added Banking Centers in Loris and Pawleys
Island, South Carolina, bringing our total number of full service
Banking Centers to sixteen. In addition, we currently have two BI-
LO Grocery Store Banking Centers offering extended weekday and
Saturday banking hours, and twenty two ATMs. Our Bank By Phone
delivery channel last year handled more than 442,000 calls and our
Internet Banking facility handled more than 500,000 Internet bank-
ing sessions last year, almost 1 1/2 times the previous year.




SALES CULTURE: In the Financial Institution category of the 2002
SUN NEWS Readers’ Poll, for the fifth consecutive year, our
Customers voted us "Best of the Beach."

The 2002 FDIC/OTS SUMMARY OF DEPOSITS REPORT ranked Coastal
Federal Bank the leader in deposit market share for Horry County for
the twelve months ended June 30, 2002,

These measures indicate some degree of success in our quest for the
transformation of Coastal Federal Bank and Coastal Investor
Services, Inc. to Sales Organizations which are focused on needs-
based selling.

This early indication of positive results from the Transformational
Element of our Vision 2005 Plan, which has huge potential, will get
much stronger over time. Qur definition of selling is worlds away
from the stereotypical image of high-pressure "forced" selling.
Rather, we use the term Sales Organization to describe our vision of
Coastal Financial Corporation as an organization which has such
strong relationships with its Customers that its financial services
offerings are always in alignment with its Mission of Being Totally
Committed to Exceeding The Expectations Of Its Customer. Qur
approach is both proactive and in the spirit of partnership with our
Customers. Our interest is in matching a Customer’s needs with the
right products and services through the development of broad and
durable relationships which allow us to better enable them to
understand and address their financial services needs at every stage
of their lives. Our philosophy reflects on the financial services needs
of our Customers, not about "specials of the month" marketing cam-
paigns which probably bear little relevance to their legitimate
needs.

BRAND IDENTITY: At almost fifty years of age, it has stood the test
of time. Our brand, COASTAL FEDERAL BANK, is one of the most
widely recognized symbols of Trust and expertise in the delivery of
financial services in one of the best markets in America. Our brand
stands for Commitment, Leadership, Integrity and Quality in
Exceeding The Expectations Of Our Customer. In other words, being
totally committed to our Associates, our Customers and our
Communities.

OUR PEOPLE: While all these competitive advantages are very
important, they are meaningless without talented team members,
who believe in Who We Are and What We Are About, and who truly
care about their Customers. Our brand does not serve Customers. Our
People serve Customers. Coastal Financial team members put their
Customers first. Products and technology can be duplicated, but we
believe our people are more talented, more motivated and more
energized than our competitors. They care about each other, they
care about their Customers, they care about their Communities and
they care about their Company. It is our firm belief that it is our
People who give Coastal Financial Corporation a competitive edge.
We will continue to invest in attracting, developing and retaining
the very best People who share a passion for our Mission, our Values
and our Guiding Principles.

LOOKING AHEAD: The success we have enjoyed over the past
twelve years is not by chance. While we are very fortunate to be
located in one of the best markets in America, all of the success
that Coastal Financial has achieved has come about because of the
hard work and mental focus of our Associates. And we have the best
team imaginable.

I just can't thank our Board Of Directors, Leadership Group and
Associates enough for all they do for all of us on a daily basis. Our
2002 results speak volumes about their commitment to our Basic
Corporate Objective of Maximizing The Value Of Our Shareholders’
Investment by being focused on Our Long-Term Goal Of Being The
Best Financial Services Company In Our Marketplace.

Our Coastal Financial Leadership Group, which has created and rein-
forced the culture that has enabled our success and our QUEST FOR
EXCELLENCE Operating Philosophy and Vision 2005 Plan, which are
reflective of our long-term focus on our People, our Mission, our
Values and our Guiding Principles, are the primary ingredients and
the essential components for ensuring a great future.

During 2001 and 2002, both revenue and earnings reached record
levels. In fact, in these two years alone, our net income has surged
over 20%. And, as a result of this level of earnings, combined with
our share repurchase program, earnings per share has increased 24%
over the last two years.

And we still have significant potential for further gains. In the last
five years, our net income has increased by more than 76%. Since
becoming a publicly owned Company in 1990, we have roughly dou-
bled our earnings every five years.

Everyone in the Coastal Financial family is very proud of these
achievements and looks forward to even greater accomplishments in
the years ahead. And, although we do not have a crystal ball to pre-
dict the future, we do take comfort in the fact that we have excep-
tional Associates who believe in who we are and what we are about,
great markets, excellent products, tremendous momentum and
unshakable confidence in our ability, as a team, to continue to
focus our efforts on building even stronger relationships with our
Customers and our Communities and to continue to achieve superi-
or returns for our Shareholders in the future.

All of us at Coastal Financial Corporation appreciate your continued
encouragement, loyalty and support, and look to the future with
great enthusiasm and excitement.

b

Michael C. Gerald
President and
Chief Executive Officer

LOOKING AHEAD
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Direktors
Coastal Financial jCorporation
Myrtle Beach, South Carolina

We have audited the consolidated statements of financial condition of Coastal Financial Corporation and subsidiaries (the
"Company") as of, September 30, 2001 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equi-
ty and comprehehsive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September 30, 2002.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards requireithat we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dis-
closures in the ﬁ:nancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant esti-
mates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonafble basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company at September 30, 2001 and 2002, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of
the years in the fhree-year period ended September 30, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Greenville, South@ Carolina
October 28, 2002

KPMe LIP



COASTAL FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

2002

{Dollars in thousands)

25,802
2,014
331,808

536,851
18,694
1,046
13,713
10,559
2,232
2,019
6,058

$950,796

637,081
36,884
189,669
2,069
2,517
1,386
1,473
13,331

884,410

106
9,944
54,954

(4,376)
5,758

66,386

September 30, 2001 and 2002
2001
ASSETS
Cash and amounts due from banks . .. ....... ... i $ 24,966
Short-term interest-bearing deposits . ........ . i i 9,354
Investment securities available forsale ........ .. ... . i L. 2,000
Mortgage-backed securities available forsale. ........ ... ... . .. ... 190,553
Loans receivable (net of allowance for loan losses of $7,159 .................
at September 30, 2001 and $7,883 at September 30, 2002) ................. 488,754
Loans receivable held forsale . ...... .. i i e 16,274
Real estate acquired through foreclosure, net . ... .. ... .. i, 2,363
Office property and equipment, net . ....... . . i 13,150
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) stock, atcost ........ ... .. ... 7,624
Accrued interest receivableonloans .. ... ... . e 2,783
Accrued interest receivable on securities.. . . ..o i i e e 1,341
Other assets. ..ottt e e 4,052
$763,214
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQuITY
Liabilities:
DEPOSIES .. e e e e e e, 530,364
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase ...... 18,703
Advances from FHLB . . .. .. . i i 140,036
Other bormowings . . . .. it e e e e 2,069
Drafts outstanding . . . . . . .ot e e 2,577
Advances by borrowers for property taxes and insurance. .......... . . 0., 1,250
Accrued interest payable. .. ... ... 1,184
Other liabilities. . ... i i i e 9,783
Total lahilities . ..o vt 705,966
Stockholders' equity:
Serial preferred stock, 1,000,000 shares authorized and unissued ............. —
Common stock $.01 par value, 15,000,000 shares authorized;
10,693,325 shares at September 30, 2001 and 10,587,726
shares at September 30, 2002 issued and outstanding .. ................. 107
Additional paid-in capital .. ...... .. e e 9,744
Retained earnings, restricted ... ....... .. . . i 47,496
Treasury stock, at cost (324,483 shares at September 30, ..................
2001 and 430,082 shares at September 30, 2002) ............. ... ..., (3,620)
Accumulated other comprehensive income, netoftax ..................... 3,521
Total stockholders' equity . . o oo it e e 57,248
$763,214

$950,796

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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COASTAL FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Interest:

Years ended September 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002

Loans receivable
Investment securities
Mortgage-backed securities
Other
Total interest income

Interest expense:;

Deposits .« ..t N
Securities soldiunder agreements to repurchase ...............

Advances fromiFHLB . .. .. it i e e

Total interest expense . .. ... .o i
Net interest inCome . .. vt vt et ie e i i i e ie e e

Provision for loan losses

Other income:
Fees and service charges on loans and deposit accounts .........
Gain on sales of loans held forsale ............ ... ... .. ...

Gain (loss) on|sales of investment securities, net .. ............
Gain (loss) onjsales of mortgage-backed securities, net ..........
Gain.on sale of deposits .. ....... ... il
Loss from real lestate acquired through foreclosure . ............
Income from sales of non-depository products .. ..............
Federal Home Loan Bank stock dividends . . .. ..o vnn. ..
Otheringome & .. v i i i e e i

Total other ifncome .................................

General and administrative expenses:

Salaries and employee benefits .. ......... ... ... 0.,

Net occupancy; furniture and fixtures and data processing expense . .
FDIC inSUrance PremitiM .« v v v v v ve e e et e e e e
FHLB prepayment penalties . .......... ... oviiiinnn..
Other expense. .. ...t i e
Total general and administrative expense. .. ................
Income before income taxes . .. ..o oot v e

INCoOme taXes. vt it e e e
=y T T 1=

Earnings per common share
Basic ..... e e e e

Diluted . .. ......................................
Average common shares outstanding

Basic ..... e e e e e e
Diluted .. 1 ......................................

...........................................

...................................

................................

Consolidated Statements of Operations

2000

2001

2002

(In thousands, except share data)

$ 44,005 45,899 40,261
2,484 2,479 2,030
10,987 11,261 11,348
603 616 234
58,079 60,255 53,873
15,769 19,380 13,750
5,993 2,810 414
10,874 11,133 7,682
33,636 33,323 21,846
24,443 26,932 32,027
978 955 1,235
23,465 25,977 30,792
2,126 2,634 3,148
631 1,295 1,462
(17) (56) 102
(1,554) 727 238
1,746 — —

(64) (453) (137)
834 1,269 1,281
711 750 463
1,468 1,736 1,582
5,881 7,902 8,139
9,149 10,546 12,514
3,946 4,029 5,044
121 84 93
— 1,113 1,083
2,975 3,520 4,090
16,191 19,292 22,824
13,155 14,587 16,107
4,698 5,287 5,901
$ 8,457 9,300 10,206
$ 0.76 0.86 0.96
$ 0.75 0.85 0.93
11,078,000 10,848,000 10,615,000
11,216,000 10,995,000 10,940,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



COASTAL FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders” Equity

and Comprehensive Income
Years ended September 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002

Accumulated
Other
Additional Comprehensive  Total
Common Paid-in Retained Treasury Income  Stockholders’
Stock Capital Eamings Stock (Loss) Equity
(In thousands)

Balance at September 30, 1999 ............ $110 $9,277 334,288 $ (356) $(2,082) $ 41,237
Exercise of stock options . . ............... — 467 (514) 617 — 570
Cash dividends ................ . ... ... — — (1,912) — —  (1,912)
Netincome .. ...... ... .. — — 8,457 — — 8,457
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized losses arising during period,

net of taxes of $255 .. ... ... .. ... ... — — — — (417) —
Less: reclassification adjustment for losses

included in net income, net of taxes of $597 .. — — — — 974 —
Other comprehensive income . ............. — — — — 557 557
Comprehensive income .. ................ — — — — — 9,014
Treasury stock repurchases ... ............. _ (1) — — (1.963) — (1,964)
Balance at September 30, 2000 . ........... 100 9,744 40,319 (1,702)  (1,525) 46,945
Exercise of stock options . .. ..... ... . ... .. — — (108) 214 — 106
Cash dividends ........... ... ... ... .. — — (2,015) — —  (2,015)
Netincome .. ...... ... . .. — — 9,300 — — 9,300
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized gains arising during period,

net of taxesof $3,348 . ... ...... ... ..., — — — — 5,462 —
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains

included in net income, net of taxes of $255 p— — — — (416) —
Other comprehensive income .............. — — — — 5,046 5,046
Comprehensive income .. ................ — — — — — 14,346
Treasury stock repurchases . . ... ... ... ... .. _(2) — — {2,132) — _ {2,134)
Balance at September 30, 2001 ............ 107 9,744 47,496  (3,620) 3,521 57,248
Exercise of stock options . .. ........ .. ..., — 200 (526) 1,529 — 1,203
Cash dividends ............ ... ........ — —  (2,222) — —  (2,222)
Netincome ....... ... .. .. . — — 10,206 — — 10,206
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized gains arising during period,

net of taxes of $1,500 .. ............... — — — — 2,449 —
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains

included in net income, net of taxes of $128 — — — — {212) —
Other comprehensive income . ............. — — — — 2,237 2,237
Comprehensive income . ... ...t — — — — — _12,443
Treasury stock repurchases . . .............. (1) — — _(2,285) — _(2,286)
Balance at September 30, 2002 ............ $106 $9,944 $54,954 $(4,376) $5,758 $66,386

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,




COASTAL FINAN;CIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended September 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002 2000 2001 2002
‘ (In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Netincome. . ..vvveivn e $ 8,457 9,300 10,206
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciaion . v v v v v e 1,419 1,556 2,074
Provision for l0an 10SSes . . . v vttt it e e 978 955 1,235
(Gain) loss on sale of mortgage-backed securities available for sale . . .. 1,554 (727) (238)
{Gain) loss on sale of investment securities available orsale. ... ... .. 17 56 (102)
Origination of loans receivable held forsale .................... (27,253)  (81,778) (100,309)
Proceeds from sales of loans receivable held forsale .............. 33,695 28,541 13,907
Loss on early extinguishment of debt. . . . ... ... ... ... ... — 1,113 1,083
(Increase) decrease in:
OLhEr @SSEES .« . v v v v ettt et e e e 1,855 (1,019)  (2,006)
Accrued irhterest receivable . ... ... i (478) 548 (127)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accrued interest payable. .. .. ... ... Ll 1,375 (1,347) 289
Other liabjih'ties ..................................... 243 428 2,176
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities. ........... 21,862 (42,374) (71,812)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available forsale. ......... 10,266 5,125 —
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities available for sale . . . . .. — 1,595 1,995
Purchases of investment securities available forsale . ............... (12,737) — (1,998)
Purchases of loans receivable. . .. .. oot e (4,027) (20) (233)
Proceeds from sales of mortgage-backed securities available for sale. . . . .. 106,367 164,919 128,169
Purchases of mortgage-backed securities available forsale . ........... (124,502)  (158,004) (254,494)
Principal collected on mortgage-backed securities available forsale . . . . .. 25,219 47,566 72,990
Origination of loans receivable, net. . ........ ... .. o it (219,943)  (214,296) (317,899)
Principal cotlec’ged onloansreceivable. . ...... ... .. . . 139,900 233,653 268,120
Disposition of Florence office assets and liabilities, net. . ............. (13,265) — —
Proceeds from sjaLes of real estate acquired through foreclosure . . . ... ... 180 1,159 1,997
Purchases of office properties and equipment . ... ... ... ... ... . ... "(2,392) (3.188)  (2,637)
Sales (purchases) of FHLB stock, met. ...... ...t (3,698) 4,275 (2,935)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities . . ... ....... (98,632) 82,784 (106,925)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in depOSitS . o v vt ittt ettt e e e e 31,397 124,147 106,717
Increase (decreése) in securities sold under agreements to repurchase . . .. (21,090) (57,155) 18,181
Proceeds from FHLB advances . ....... ... ..., 890,404 358,771 312,426
Repayment of FHLB advances. .. ........ ... ..., (829,204)  (443,959) (262,793)
Proceeds (repayments) from other borrowings, net . ................ 500 — —
Prepayment penalties on early extinguishment of debt .............. — (1,113) (1,083)
Increase (decrease) in advance payments by borrowers for property
taxes and iNSUMANCE. . o .ottt (89) 7 136
Increase (decrease) in drafts outstanding, net. .. .................. 1,092 102 (60)
Repurchase of treasury stock, atcost. . ............. .. .. .. ... (1,964) (2,134)  (2,286)
Cash dividends ito stockholders and cash for fractional shares ... ....... (1,912) (2,015)  (2,222)
Exercise of stock options. . . ... ... L 570 106 1,203
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . . . ......... 69,704  (23,257) 170,219
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents................. (7,066) 17,153 (8,518)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year, . ................... 24,233 17,167 34,320
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year. .. ...................... $ 17,167 34,320 25,802
Supplemental information:. . . ... L
Interestpaid. 4. . ..o e e $ 32,261 34,670 21,557
Incometaxes paid . .......coven i $ 3,789 5,249 5,726
Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing transactions:
Securitization of mortgage loans into mortgage-backed securities. . . .. . .. $ 14,894 47,157 83,982
Transfer of morfgage loans to real estate acquired through foreclosure . ... § 951 2,655 680
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




COASTAL FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies used in the preparation and presentation of
the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with gener-
ally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements. In addition, they affect the reported amounts of income and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates and assumptions.

(a) Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Coastal Financial Corporation (the
"Company"), and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Coastal Federal Mortgage, Inc., Coastal Investor Services, Inc. and
Coastal Federal Bank (the "Bank"), and the Bank’s wholly-owned subsidiaries, Coastal Federal Holding Company (and
Coastal Federal Holding Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Coastal Real Estate Investment Corporation) and Coastal
Mortgage Bankers and Realty Co., Inc. (and Coastal Mortgage Bankers and Realty Co. Inc’s wholly-owned subsidiaries,
Shady Forest Development Corporation, Sherwood Development Corporation, Ridge Development Corporation, 501
Development Corporation and North Beach Investments, Inc.). In consolidation, all significant intercompany balances
and transactions have been eliminated. Coastal Financial Corporation is a unitary thrift holding company organized
under the laws of the state of Delaware.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and amounts due from banks, short-
term interest-bearing deposits and federal funds sold. Cash and cash equivalents have maturities of three months or
less. Accordingly, the carrying amount of such instruments is considered to be a reasonable estimate of fair value.

(c) Investment and Mortgage-backed Securities

Investment and mortgage-backed securities are accounted for in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards ("SFAS") No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities”. Investments are clas-
sified into three categories as follows: (1) Held to Maturity - debt securities that the Company has the positive intent
and ability to hold to maturity, which are reported at amortized cost; (2) Trading - debt and equity securities that are
bought and held principally for the purpase of selling them in the near term, which are reported at fair value, with unre-
alized gains and losses included in earnings and (3) Available for Sale - debt and equity securities that may be sold
under certain conditions, which are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and
reported as a separate component of stockholders’ equity, net of income taxes.

The Company determines investment and mortgage-backed securities classification at the time of purchase. Premiums
and discounts on securities are accreted or amortized as an adjustment to income over the estimated life of the security
using a method which approximates a level yield. Unrealized losses on securities, reflecting a decline in value judged by
the Company to be other than temporary, are charged to income in the consolidated statements of operations.

The cost basis of securities sold is determined by specific identification. Purchases and sales of securities are
recorded on a trade date basis. The fair value of securities is based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes.

(d) Loans Receivable Held for Sale

Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or estimat-
ed market value in the aggregate. Net unrealized losses are provided for in a valuation allowance by charges to operations.
At September 30, 2001 and 2002, the Company had approximately $16.3 million and $18.7 million in mortgage loans held
for sale, respectively. Gains or losses on sales of loans are recognized when control over these assets has been surrendered
in accordance with SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfer and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishment of
Liabilities” (“SFAS No. 1407).

(e) Loans Receivable

Loans receivable are stated at unpaid principal balances adjusted for unamortized premiums and unearned discounts.
The Company recognizes interest income on loans using the simple interest method.

17




1

COASTAL FINANCI%\L CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIF;ICANT ACCOUNTING PoLictes - Continued
(e) Loans Receivable - CONTINUED

The Company follows SFAS No. 114, "Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan," for determining impairment
on loans. SFAS No. 114 requires that nonhomogenous impaired loans and certain restructured loans be measured at the
present value of expetted future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, at the loan’s observable mar-
ket price or at the f:iir value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. A specific reserve is set up for each
impaired loan. Accrual of interest income on impaired loans is suspended when in management’s judgment, doubt exists
as to the collectibility of principal and interest. If amounts are received on loans for which the accrual of interest has been
discontinued, a determination is made as to whether payments received should be recorded as a reduction of the princi-
pal balance or as interest income depending on management’s judgment as to the collectibility of principal. The loan is
returned to accrual status when, in management's judgment, the borrower has demonstrated the ability to make periodic
interest and principal/ payments on a timely basis.

Loans are charged-off (if unsecured) or written-down (if secured) when the amount of loss is reasonably quantifiable
and the loss is likely to occur. Commercial loans are generally placed in nonaccrual status when they become 90-days delin-
quent or earlier if full collection of principal and interest becomes doubtful. Consumer and mortgage loans are placed in
nonaccrual status whe‘;n they become 90 days delinquent or earlier if full collection of principal and interest becomes doubt-
ful. Interest payments received after a loan is placed in nonaccrual are applied as a principal reduction until such time as
the loan is returned to accrual status. Generally, loans are returned to accrual status when the loan is brought current and
the ultimate collectibility of principal and interest is no longer in doubt. The Company maintains an allowance for the loss
of uncollected interest primarily on loans which are ninety days or more past due. This allowance is reviewed periodically
and necessary adjustrfnents, if any, are included in the determination of current interest income.

(f) Loan Fees aﬁd Discounts

The net of or‘igin;ation fees received and direct costs incurred in the origination of loans are deferred and amortized
to interest income over the contractual life of the loans adjusted for actual principal repayments using a method approx-
imating a level yield.,

(g) Allowance fo‘%r Loan Losses

The Company provides for loan losses on the allowance method. Accordingly, all loan losses are charged to the
allowance and all recoveries are credited to the allowance. Additions to the allowance for loan losses are provided by
charges to operations based on various factors which, in management's judgment, deserve current recognition in esti-
mating losses. Such factors considered by management include the market value of the underlying collateral, growth
and composition of the loan portfolio, loss experience, review of problem assets, delinquency trends, and local and
regional economic conditions. Management evaluates the carrying value of loans periodically and the allowance is
adjusted accordingly! While management uses the best information available to make evaluations, future adjustments
to the allowance may be necessary if economic conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the
evaluation. The allowjance for loan losses is subject to periodic evaluation by various regulatory authorities and may be
subject to adjustment upon their examination.

(h) Concentratio}n of Credit Risk

The Company's primary market area includes northeastern South Carolina and southeastern North Carolina predomi-
nately along the coastal regions. At September 30, 2002, the majority of the total loan portfolio, as well as a substantial
portion of the commercial and real estate loan portfolios, were to borrowers within this region. No areas of significant con-
centrations of credit ﬁsk have been identified.

(i) Lloan Securitizations

The Company pa;ckages and sells loan receivables as securities to investors. These transactions are recorded as sales
in accordance with SFAS No. 140 when control over these assets has been surrendered.



COASTAL FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued

(1) SuMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Poticies — Continued

(J) Real Estate Owned

Real estate acquired in settlement of loans is initially recorded at the tower of cost or net fair value (less estimated
costs to sell). If cost exceeds net fair value, the asset is written down to net fair value with the difference being charged
against the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent to foreclosure, such assets are carried at the lower of cost or net fair
value with any additional write downs being charged as real estate losses.

(k) Office Properties and Equipment

Office properties and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed primari-
ly on the straight-line method over estimated useful lives. Estimated lives range up to thirty years for buildings and
improvements and up to ten years for furniture, fixtures and equipment. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense
as incurred. Improvements which extend the lives of the respective assets are capitalized. When property or equipment is
sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts
and the resulting gain or loss is reflected in income.

(1) Mortgage Servicing Rights

SFAS No. 140 requires the recognition of originated mortgage servicing rights (“mortgage servicing rights” or “MSRs"™)
as assets by allocating total costs incurred between the originated loan and the servicing rights retained based on their
relative fair values. SFAS No. 140 also requires the recognition of purchased mortgage servicing rights at fair value, which
is presumed to be the price paid for the rights. MSRs are amortized in proportion to the servicing income over the esti-
mated life of the related mortgage loan. The amortization method is designed to approximate a level-yield method, tak-
ing into consideration the estimated prepayment of the underlying loans. For purposes of measuring impairment, MSRs are
reviewed for impairment by management on a quarterly basis. The Company establishes an impairment valuation allowance
to record any impairment for MSRs. Subsequent increases in value are recognized only to the extent of the impairment val-
uation allowance.

(m) Income Taxes

Deferred taxes are provided for differences in the financial reporting basis for assets and liabilities as compared to
their tax bases. A current tax liability or asset is established for taxes presently payable or refundable and a deferred tax
liability or asset is established for future taxable or deductible items.

(n) Drafts Outstanding

The Company invests all excess funds on deposit at other banks (including amounts on deposit for payment of out-
standing disbursement checks) on a daily basis in an overnight interest-bearing account. Accordingly, outstanding checks
are reported as a liability.

(o) Securities Sold Under Agreement to Repurchase

The Company maintains collateral for certain customers who wish to deposit amounts greater than $100,000. These
agreements function similarly to a certificate of deposit in that the agreement is for a fixed length of time at a fixed inter-
est rate. However, these deposits are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the "FDIC"), but are col-
lateralized by an interest in the pledged securities. The Company has classified these borrowings separately from deposits.

(p) Stock Based Compensation

The Company follows the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 123 "Accounting for Stock Based Compensation”. The state-
ment permits the Company to continue accounting for stock based compensation as set forth in APB Opinion No. 25,
"Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, provided the Company discloses the proforma effect on net income and earn-
ings per share of adopting the full provisions of SFAS No. 123. Accordingly, the Company continues to account for stock
based compensation under APB Opinion No. 25 and has provided the required proforma disclosures.
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLicies ~ Continued

(q) Comprehensi\f/e Income

SFAS No. 130, "Reporting Comprehensive Income" establishes standards for the reporting and presentation of com-
prehensive income and its components in a full set of financial statements. Comprehensive income consists of net income
and net unrealized gains (losses) on securities and is presented in the statements of stockholders’ equity and comprehen-
sive income. ‘

(r) Disclosures Regarding Segments

The Company reports operating segments in accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information” (“SFAS No. 131"). Operating segments are components of an enterprise about which
separate financial infc}rmation is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding
how to allocate resources and assess performance. SFAS No. 131 requires that a public enterprise report a measure of seg-
ment profit or loss, cértain specific revenue and expense items, segment assets, information about the way that the oper-
ating segments were ﬁdetermined and other items. The Company has one reportable operating segment, Coastal Federal
Bank. |

(s) Derivative Instruments and Hedging

SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” and SFAS No. 138 “Accounting for
Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities, an Amendment of SFAS No. 133" establishes compre-
hensive accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and hedging activities. It requires an entity to
recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheet, and measure those instruments at fair value.
Changes in the fair value of those derivatives are reported in current earnings or other comprehensive income depend-
ing on the purpose for which the derivative is held and whether the derivative qualifies for hedge accounting.

(t) Reclassification of Losses on Early Extinguishment of Debt

The Company adopted SFAS No. 145 “Recissions of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement
No. 13, and Technic?l Corrections” (“SFAS No. 145"} effective July 1, 2002. In connection with this adoption, the
Company reclassified losses on the early extinguishment of debt, which were incurred in fiscal 2001 and 2002 and totaled
$1.1 million for both \years.

{u) Redassiﬁcat;"ons

Certain amounts lin the 2000 and 2001 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform with the
2002 presentation. Such reclassifications did not change net income or equity as previously reported.

(2) INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities available for sale at September 30, 2001 are summarized
as follows: 1

1 2001
! Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

1 (In thousands)
U.S. Government and agency obligations:
Due after one but within five years .. ............ $ — — — —
Due after five years .. ...........vvuiinnn.. 1,893 107 — 2,000
5 $ 1,893 107 —_ 2,000




COASTAL FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued

(2) INVESTMENT SECURITIES - CONTINUED

The amortized cost and market value of investment securities available for sale at September 30, 2002 are summa-
rized as follows:

2002
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

(In thousands)
U.S. Government and agency obtigations:
Due after one but within fiveyears .............. $ — — — —
Due after fiveyears ........ ... . ..., 1,998 16 — 2,014
$ 1,998 16 — 2,014

The Company had gross realized gains of $8,000 and gross realized losses were $25,000 for the year ended September
30, 2000. For the year ended September 30, 2001, gross realized gains were $17,000 and gross realized losses were $73,000.
For the year ended September 30, 2002, gross realized gains were $102,000 and there were no gross realized losses.

Certain investment and mortgage-backed securities are pledged to secure other borrowed money and customer
deposits in excess of FDIC insurance coverage. The carrying value of the securities pledged at September 30, 2002 was
$127.9 million with a fair value of $132.8 million.

(3) MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES

Mortgage-backed securities available for sale at September 30, 2001 consisted of the following:

2001
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Gains Losses Value
(In thousands)
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations ................. $ 28,856 859 — 29,715
FNMA e e e 123,271 3,899 (6) 127,164
GNMA e e 20,630 507 — 21,137
FHLMC . e e e 12,223 314 — 12,537
$ 184,980 5,579 (6) 190,553

Mortgage-backed securities available for sale at September 30, 2002 consisted of the following:

2002
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
_ Cost ains Losses Value
(In thousands)
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations . . .. ........... $ 36,320 398 (18) 36,700
FNMA e e e 206,448 6,673 — 213,121
GNMA e e e e 22,139 891 — 23,030
FHLMC o . e e e 57,628 1,332 (3) 58,957

$322,535 9,294 _ (21) 331,808

The Company had gross realized gains of $370,000 and gross realized losses of $1.9 million for the year ended September
30, 2000. For the year ended September 30, 2001, the Company had gross realized gains of $1.0 million and gross realized
losses of $312,000. For the year ended September 30, 2002, the Company had gross realized gains of $462,000 and gross
realized losses of $224,000.
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(4) LOANS RECEIVABLE, iNET

Loans receivable, net at September 30 consisted of the following:
: 2001 2002

(In thousands)

First mortgage loans:

Single family to 4 family units . . ... ..ot $252,396 242,602
Other, primarily commercial real estate .. ........vvvvevernnn... 137,282 202,117
Residenﬁal construction l0ans . ...t i i e 16,798 15,105
Commeréial construction loans ... .. i e e e e 43,967 30,439
Consumer and commercial loans:
Installment consumer loans . ...... ..ttt e 14,539 12,882
Mobile home loans . ....... ... ... .. . i 2,056 3,446
Savings account loans .. ..o e e 1,221 1,613
Equity inesof credit ... ... .. 22,379 24,273
Commercial and Other l0ans . . ...ovv it e e e 18,886 18,377
; 509,524 550,854
Less: :
Allowance for 0an l0SSes . .. v v vttt e 7,159 7,883
Deferred{loan cost, met .. ....... ... i (372) (245)
Undisbursed portion of loans inprocess . . .. ... ... . L. 13,983 6,365

$488,754 536,851

The changes in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended September 30 consisted of the following:

2000 2001 2002
(In thousands)
Beginning allowance . ........ ... ... $ 6,430 7,064 7,159
Provision for/loan l0SSes . .. oo vi e 978 955 1,235
Allowance recorded on acquired loans. . ............. ... ... 50 — —
Disposition of Florence officeloans .. ........ccvvuvonn.. (75) — —
LOAN TECOVETIES '+ v v v v e ve et ettt e e et ee e e e e e 77 60 66
Loan charge-fof‘Fs .................................. (396) (920) (577)
! $ 7,064 7,159 7,883

Non-accrual loans which were over ninety days delinquent totaled approximately $3.3 million and $3.5 million at
September 30, 2001 dnd 2002, respectively. In fiscal years 2000, 2001 and 2002, interest income which would have been
recorded would have {been approximately $220,000, $377,000 and $301,000, respectively, had non-accruing {oans been
current in accordance] with their original terms.

There were $3.4 million in impaired loans at September 30, 2001. At September 30, 2002, impaired loans totaled
$3.2 million. Includeh in the allowance for loan losses at September 30, 2001 was $281,000 related to impaired loans
compared to $194,000 at September 30, 2002. The average recorded investment in impaired loans for the year ended
September 30, 2001 was $3.6 million compared to $3.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2002. Interest income
recognized on impaired loans in fiscal 2001 was $120,000. Interest income recognized on impaired loans in
fiscal 2002 was $36,000.

In the normal course of business, to meet the financing needs of its Customers, the Company is a party to finan-
cial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and
stand by letters of credit. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in
excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheet.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the other party to the financial instru-
ment is represented By the contractual amount of these instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in mak-
ing commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.




COASTAL FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
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(4) LoaNns RecervaBLe, NeT - Continued

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend as long as there is no violation of any condition established
in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require pay-
ment of a fee. Since many of the commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts
do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates each Customer’s creditworthiness on a
case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit,
is based on management's credit evaluation.

Unfunded loan commitments and letters of credit at September 30, 2002 were approximately $82.6 million and
included the following (in thousands):

Loan Commitments:

Residential housingand land . ........ ... .. ... ... .. ..... $ 28,750
Home equity loans and consumer lines of credit . .............. 37,182
Commercial lines of credit ... ... ... .. ... . .. ... 1,286
Standby letters of credit . ... ... .. ... 3,952
Unused business and personal credit card lines ................ 11,437

Loans serviced for the benefit of others amounted to approximately $106.1 million, $143.3 million and $192.1 mil-
lion at September 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

During fiscal 2002, the Company securitized $84.0 million of mortgage loans and reclassed them to securities avail-
able for sale. In accordance with SFAS No. 140, no gain was recognized related to the securitization, and mortgage ser-
vicing rights of approximately $1.4 million were recorded. The Company subsequently sold $81.2 million of these mort-
gage-backed securities to outside third parties and recognized a gain on sale of $1.1 million. The gain is included in
gains on sales of loans held for sale in the consolidated income statement. The Company has no retained interest in
the securities that were sold.

As disclosed in note 9, certain mortgage loans are pledged to secure advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank
("FHLB") of Atlanta.

The Bank offers mortgage and consumer loans to its directors, and Associates for the financing of their personal
residences and for other personal purposes. The Bank also offers commercial loans to companies affiliated with direc-
tors. These loans are made in the ordinary course of business and, in management’s opinion, are made on substantial-
ly the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other
persons and companies. Management does not believe these loans involve more than the normal risk of collectibility or
present other unfavorable features. At September 30, 2002, such loans were current with respect to their payment terms.

The following is a summary of the activity of loans outstanding to certain executive officers, directors and their
affiliates for the year ended September 30, 2002 (in thousands):

Balance at September 30, 2001 . ............. $ 1,178
New loans . ... it i i e e 399
Repayments . ... ... .. i i 458
Balance at September 30, 2002 .............. $ 1,119
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(5) MORTGAGE SERVICING ‘RIGHTS

MSRs which are included in other assets totaled $1.3 million and $2.2 million at September 30, 2001 and 2002,
respectively. Amortization expense for MSRs totaled $217,000 and $505,000 for the years ended September 30, 2001
and 2002, respectively}. The estimated amortization expense for MSRs held as of September 30, 2002, is $622,000,
$606,000, $494,000, $396,000 and $85,000 for fiscal 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007 respectively. The estimated
amortization expense is based on current information regarding loan payments and prepayments. Amortization expense
could change in future periods based on changes in the volume of prepayments and various economic factors.

2001 2002
: (In thousands)
Balance at beginningofyear ....................... $ 677 1,310
MSRs capitaliz:ed .................................. 850 1,398
MSRs amortized . . .. ... v i e (217) (505)

Balance atendofyear ....... ..ot $ 1,310 2,203

(6) OFFICE PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NeT
Office property anﬁ equipment, net at September 30 consisted of the following:

2001 2002
1 . (In thousands)
Land ..... D e e e e e e e e e $ 3,120 3,143
Building and improvements . ... ... ... 9,320 10,127
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . ..................... 12,606 14,297
! 25,046 27,567
Less accumulated depreciation .......... ... 11,896 13,854

$ 13,150 13,713

The Company leases office space and various equipment. Total rental expense for the years ended September 30, 2000,
2001 and 2002 was approximately $213,000, $291,000 and $288,000 respectively.

Future minimum réntat payments for operating leases having remaining noncancelable lease terms in excess of one
year at September 30,2002 are as follows (in thousands):

2003 ... e e e e $ 166
2004 .. e e e e e 161
2005 .. e e 151
2006 ... e e 71
2007 e e e 20
Thereafter ... .......... .. ... ... 252

$ 821

(7) INVESTMENT REQUIRED BY LAw

The Bank, as a member of the FHLB of Atlanta, is required to acquire and hold shares of capital stock in the FHLB of
Atlanta in an amount equal to the greater of (i) 1.0% of the aggregate outstanding principal amount of residential mort-
gage loans, home puréhase contracts and similar obligations at the beginning of each year, or (ii) 1/20 of its advances
(borrowings) from the [FHLB of Atlanta. The Bank is in compliance with this requirement with an investment in FHLB stock
of $10.6 million at September 30, 2002. No ready market exists for this stock and it has no quoted market value. However,
redemption of this stock has historically been at par value.
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(8) DerosITs

Deposits at September 30 consisted of the following:
2001 2002

Weighted Weighted
Amount Rate Amount Rate

(Dotlars in thousands)

Transaction accounts:

Noninterest bearing .................... $ 49,098 — % 63,003 —%
NOW e 55,926 0.44 67,381 0.38
Money market checking ................. 193,631 2.90 212,924 2.16
Total transaction accounts . ............ 298,655 1.96 343,308 1.41
Passbook accounts:
Regular passhooks . .................... 32,268 1.69 37,905 1.09
Money market . ... ... ... . . i o, 1,049 1.94 1,187 1.95
Total passbook accounts . ............. 33,317 1.70 39,092 1,12
Certificate accounts:
0.00-5.99% ....... i 164,306 238,439
6.00-8.00% ...t e 33,648 15,758
8.00-10.00% . o v v v v i e e 438 484
Total certificate accounts . ............. 198,392 4.82 254,681 3.46

$ 530,364 3.01% 637,081 2.21%

The aggregate amount of all deposit accounts with a minimum denomination of $100,000 or more was $201.2 million
and $245.4 million at September 30, 2001 and 2002, respectively. Included in certificate accounts were $2.4 million at
September 30, 2001 and 2002, respectively, originated by brokers for a fee.

The amounts and scheduled maturities of certificate accounts at September 30, are as follows:

2001 2002
(In thousands)
Within Tyear .. .. ... ... .. e $ 162,305 201,370
After 1 but within 2 years ..................... 26,251 27,484
After 2 but within 3years .............. ... .... 4,067 20,358
Thereafter ... i 5,769 5,469

$ 198,392 254,681

Interest expense on deposits for the years ended September 30 consisted of the following:

2000 2001 2002
( In thousands)
Transaction accounts . . ............. $ 6,283 7,404 4,524
Passhook accounts . ................. 909 741 459
Certificate accounts . ................ 8,577 11,235 8,767

$ 15,769 19,380 13,750

The fair value of transaction and passbook accounts is $332.0 million and $382.4 million which was the amount cur-
rently payable at September 30, 2001 and 2002, respectively. The fair value of certificate accounts was $199.9 million and
$258.5 million compared to a book value of $198.4 million and $254.7 million at September 30, 2001 and 2002, respec-
tively, and was estimated by discounting the amounts payable at the certificate rates currently offered for deposits of sim-
ilar remaining maturities. The fair value estimates abave did not include the substantial benefit that results from the low
cost funding provided by the deposit liabilities compared to the cost of borrowing funds in the market.
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(9) Abvances From FHLB
Advances from thé FHLB at September 30 consisted of the following:

2001 2002
Weighted Weighted
3 Amount Rate Amount Rate
Fiscal Year Maturity (Dollars in thousands)
2002 i $ 1,400 415% $  — —%
2003 .t 23,231 4.30 32,350  2.14
20011:, ........................... 2,220 5.21 11,235 2.34
2005 .o e 400 5.24 25,500 6.24
2006 . .. 4,220 5.06 3,270 4.98
2007 . i e e — — 6,223 3.39
2008 0rgreater . . ... 108,565 5.75 111,091 5.23

$140,036 5.46% $189,669 4.61%

Stock in the FHLB/of Atlanta and specific first mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities of approximately $204.0
million and $219.8 million at September 30, 2001 and 2002, respectively, are pledged as collateral for these advances. The
Bank has adopted the policy of pledging excess collateral to facilitate future advances. At September 30, 2002, the excess
first mortgage loan collateral pledged to the FHLB will support additional borrowings of approximately $37.8 million. At
September 30, 2002, included in the three, four and five years or greater maturities were $109.0 million subject to call
provisions. Call provisions are more likely to be exercised by the FHLB when rates rise.

During fiscal 2001, the Company prepaid approximately $37.7 million of advances from FHLB and incurred gross penal-
ties of approximately $1.1 million. During fiscal 2002, the Company prepaid approximately $59.3 million of advances from
FHLB and incurred gross penalties of approximately $1.1 million. Prepayment penalties are included in general and admin-
istrative expenses in the statement of operations. Also see note 1 (t).

The estimated fair value of the FHLB advances at September 30, 2001 and 2002 is $137.2 million and $197.9 million.
This estimate is based on discounting amounts payable at contractual rates using current market rates for advances with
similar maturities.

(10) REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

The following tables set forth certain information regarding repurchase agreements by the Bank at the end of and dur-
ing the periods indicated:
‘ At September 30,
2000 2001 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

Outstanding balance:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase:
CUSEOMEr e e et $ 3,825 $ 3,703 $ 4,070
Bro|j<er .................................. 72,033 15,000 30,000

Weighted average rate (at month end) paid on:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase:
Cusﬁomer ................................. 5.75% 3.36% 1.37%
Broker . ... 6.59 2.97 1.84

Maximum amount of borrowings outstanding at any month end:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase:
CUStOmEr .\ et e $ 4196 $3,726 $ 5,625
BIOKEr ..ot 122,700 67,099 30,000

Approximate ‘javerage outstanding with respect to:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase:
CUSEOmMeT & s et e e $ 2,826 $ 2,361 $ 3,600
Broker « oo 107,737 45461 15,007

Weighted average rate (year to date) paid on:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase:
CUSEOMET + vt ettt e e 4.10% 3.73% 1.58%
BIOKEr « v v e e 6.38 5.65 2.39

|
{
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(10) REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS - CONTINUED

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase represent borrowings by the Company with maturities ranging from 1
to 28 months collateralized by securities of the United States government or its agencies, which have been delivered to a
third party custodian for safekeeping. Assets pledged to collaterize securities sold under agreements to repurchase had a
fair value of $36.1 million at September 30, 2002 and are included in mortgage-backed securities available for sale in the
consolidated balance sheet.

(11) Income TAxes

Income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended September 30 consisted of the following:

Current Deferred Total
(In thousands)
2000:
Federal . . . .o i e $ 4,484 (116) 4,368
State . . e e 325 5 330
$ 4,809 (111) 4,698
2001:
Federal .. ... i i e $ 4,792 196 4,988
State it e 308 (9) 299
$ 5,100 187 5,287
2002:
Federal . . ..ot e $ 5,407 (13) 5,394
State . .. e e e e e 507 — 507
$ 5,914 (13) 5,901

The tax effect of the Company's temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and tax basis
of assets and liabilities that give rise to the net deferred tax asset (liability) at September 30, 2001 and 2002 relate to the
following:

2001 2002
(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for loan losses . .. ... oo i i e $ 2,644 2,900
Accrued medical reserves ... ... o e 95 94
Other real estate reserves and deferred gains on other real estate . ... 69 101
Net operating loss carryforwards .. ....... ... ... ... . ... ... 135 21
Other . e e e e e 135 276
Total deferred tax assets .. ... ... . i i e 3,078 3,392
Less valuation allowance .. ...... ... .. . i (135) (21)
Net deferred tax assets ... ... ...ttt iei e 2,943 3,371

Deferred tax liabilities:

Tax bad debt reserve in excess of base year amount ............. 290 193
Property and equipment principally due to differences in depreciation . . 356 310
FHLB stock, due to stock dividends not recognized for tax purposes . .. 227 207
Deferred loan fees . .. . ..ot e 466 565
Book over tax basis in investment in unconsolidated subsidiary ... ... 2,823 2,953
Unrealized gain on securities available forsale . .. .............. 2,128 3,500
Mortgage servicing rights . . . ... ... . e 496 833
Other . e e e e e e 224 236
Total deferred tax liabilities .. ..... ... .. 0 i 7,010 8,797
Net deferred tax liability . ........ ... .. ... o i $ (4,067) (5,426)
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(11) INcoME TAXES - ConTINUED

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets as of September 30, 2001 and 2002 was $135,000 and $21,000, respec-
tively. The net change in the total valuation allowance for the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2002 was a decrease of
zero and $114,000, resﬁ)ectively. In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is
more likely than not tn‘at some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of
deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary
differences become dednctible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future tax-
able income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. In order to fully realize the deferred tax asset, the com-
pany will need to generate future taxable income prior to the expiration of the deferred tax assets governed by the tax code.
Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods, which the
deferred tax assets are)deductlble management believes it more likely than not the Company will realize the benefits of
these deductible differences, net of the existing valuation allowances at September 30, 2002. The amount of the deferred
tax asset considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the
carryforward period are freduced.

The net deferred tax liability is included in other liabilities in the consolidated financial statements. The valuation
allowance relates to the state loss carryforwards which may not be ultimately realized to reduce taxes of the Company. A
portion of the change in the net deferred tax liability relates to unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale.
A current period deferred tax expense of $1.4 million for the unrealized gains on securities available for sale has been
recorded directly to stockholders” equity. The balance of the change in the deferred tax liability results from the current
period deferred tax benefit of $13,000. Income taxes of the Company attributable to income before income taxes differ
from the amounts computed by applying the Federal income tax rate of 34% for the years ended September 30 to earn-
ings before income taxes as follows:

2000 2001 2002
: (In thousands)
Computed federal income taxes ........ $ 4,473 4,960 5,476
State tax, net of federal benefit ........ 218 197 335
Other,met ..................... 7 130 90
Total income tax expense ........... $ 4,698 5,287 5,901

The Bank has been permitted under the Internal Revenue Code to deduct an annual addition to the tax reserve for bad
debts in determining taxable income, subject to certain limitations. This addition may differ significantly from the bad
debt expense for financial reporting purposes and was based on either 8% of taxable income (the "Percentage of Taxable
Income Method") or actual loan loss experience (the "Experience Method") for the years prior to 1997. As a result of tax
legistation, the Bank will be required to recapture tax bad debt reserves in excess of pre-1988 based year amounts over a
period of approx1mately six to eight years. In addition, for the period endmg September 30, 1997, the Bank was required
to change its overall tax method of accounting for bad debts to the experience method.

Retained earningsiat September 30, 2002 includes approximately $5.2 million representing pre-1988 tax bad debt base
year reserve amounts for which no deferred income tax liability has been provided since these reserves are not expected
to reverse until 1ndeﬁmte future periods and may never reverse. Circumstances that would require an accrual of a portion
or all of this unrecorded tax liability are a reduction in qualifying loan levels relative to the end of 1987, failure to meet
the tax definition of asj savings bank, dividend payments in excess of current year or accumulated tax earnings and profits,
or other distributions in dissolution, liquidation or redemption of the Bank's stock.

(12) Benefit Plans

The Company participates in a multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all Associates.
Separate actuarial vallations are not available for each participating employer, nor are plan assets segregated. Pension
expense for the years ended September 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002 was immaterial. Plan assets exceeded the present value
of accumulated plan benefits at June 30, 2002, the latest actuarial valuation date.

The Company hasﬁ a defined contribution plan covering substantially all Associates. The Company matches Associate
contributions based upon the Company meeting certain return on equity operating results. Matching contribution expense
was approximately $250,000, $245,000 and $384,000 for fiscal years 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.
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{13) REGULATORY MATTERS

At September 30, 2002, the Bank's loans-to-one borrower limit was approximately $10.3 million. At September 30,
2002, the Bank is in compliance with the core, tangible and risk-based capital requirements and loans-to-one borrower
limits.

To be categorized as "Well Capitalized" under the prompt corrective action regulations adopted by the Federal Banking

Agencies, the Bank must maintain a total risk-based capital ratio as set forth in the following table and not be subject to
a capital directive order.

As of September 30, 2002, the most recent notification from federal banking agencies categorized the Bank as “well
capitalized” under the regulatory framework. To be categorized as “well capitalized,” the Bank must maintain minimum
total risk-based capital, tier 1 capital, and tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table. Since September 30, 2002, there
have been no events or conditions that management believes have changed the Bank’s categories. (In thousands)

Amount to be

For Capital Categorized as
Actuat Adequacy Purposes "Well Capitalized”
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of September 30, 2002:

Total Capital: .............. $68,417 12.74% $42,965 8.00% $53,706 10.00%
(To Risk Weighted Assets) '

Tier 1 Capital: ............. $62,028 11.55% N/A N/A $32,223  6.00%
(To Risk Weighted Assets)

Tier 1 Capital: ............. $62,028 6.57% $37,785 4.00% $47,231 5.00%
(To Total Assets)

Tangible Capital: ............ $62,028 6.57% $14,170 1.50% N/A N/A
(To Total Assets)

As of September 30, 2001:

Total Capital: .............. $60,711 13.30% $36,511  8.00% $45,639 10.00%
(To Risk Weighted Assets)

Tier 1 Capital: . ............ $55,252  12.11% N/A N/A  $27,383  6.00%
(To Risk Weighted Assets)

Tier 1 Capital: . ............ $55,252  7.28% $30,515  4.00% $38,144  5.00%
(To Total Assets)

Tangible Capital: ............ $55,252 - 7.28% $11,443  1.50% N/A N/A

(To Total Assets)

(14) LIQUIDATION ACCOUNT

In conjunction with the Bank's conversion to stock form on October 6, 1990, the Bank established, as required by
Office of Thrift Supervision (the "0TS") regulations, a liquidation account and maintains this account for the benefit of the
remaining eligible account holders as defined under the Bank’s plan of conversion. The initial balance of this liquidation
account was equal to the Bank's net worth defined by QTS regulations as of the date of the latest statement of financial
condition contained in the final offering circular. In the event of a complete liquidation of the Bank (and only in such
event) each eligible holder shall be entitled to receive a liquidation distribution from this account in the amount of the
then current adjusted balance for deposits then held, before any liguidation distribution may be made to the stockholders:.
The Bank is prohibited from declaring cash dividends or repurchasing its capital stock if it would cause a reduction in the
Bank's net worth below either the balance of the liquidation account or the statutory net worth requirements set by the
0Ts.
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(14) L1QuIDATION ACCOUNT - CONTINUED

The Company's ability to pay dividends depends primarily on the Bank’s ability to pay dividends to the Company. The
Bank is prohibited from declaring cash dividends on its common stock or repurchasing its common stock if the effect there-
of would cause its netiworth to be reduced below either the amount required for the liquidation account or the minimum
regulatory capital requirement. In addition, the Bank is also prohibited from declaring cash dividends and repurchasing its
own stock without pridr requlatory approval if the total amount of all dividends and stock repurchases (including any pro-
posed dividends and stock repurchases) for the applicable year exceeds its current year’s net income plus its retained net
income for the preceeding two years.

(15) EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding. Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of com-
mon shares and potential common shares outstanding. Potential common shares consist of dilutive stock options deter-
mined using the treasury stock method and the average market price of common stock. All share and per share data
have been retroactively restated for all common stock dividends. The Company has no antidilutive securities at
September 30, 2002.

The following is a sumimary of the reconciliation of average shares outstanding for the years ended September 30:

2000 2001 2002
; Basic Diluted Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
Weighted average shates outstanding 11,078,000 11,078,000 10,848,000 10,848,000 10,615,000 10,615,000
Effective of dilutive securities:
Stock options ! — 138,000 — 147,000 — 325,000
Average shares outstaﬁding 11,078,000 11,216,000 10,848,000 10,995,000 10,615,000 10,940,000

(16) Srock OpTION PLAN

The Company's stock option plan provides for stock options to be granted primarily to directors, officers and other key
Associates. Options granted under the stock option plan may be incentive stock options or non-incentive stock options.
Options are vested over a five year period and expire after ten years from the date of grant. The remaining shares of stock
reserved for the stock option plan at September 30, 2002 amounted to approximately 455,000 shares. All outstanding
options have been retroactively restated to reflect the effects of the common stock dividends. The stock option plan is
administered by thre€ non-management directors of the Company. At September 30, 2002, the Company had the follow-
ing options outstanding:

Weighted

i Average Weighted

j Number Remaining Average Number Average
Fiscat Options Contractual Exercise Options Exercise
Year Range of exercise prices: Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
199:5 $3.57 -%3.96 ...... 106,511 2.8 Years $ 3.79 106,511 $ 3.79
1996 $4.21 ............ 11,557 3.1Years $ 4.21 11,557 § 4.21
1997 $6.42 - $6.66 ...... 126,238 4.2 Years $ 6.53 126,238 § 6.53
1998 $9.37 - $14.29 ..... 250,200 5.2 Years $ 10.55 200,160 $ 10.55
199{9 $9.49 - $11.25 ... .. 186,775 6.1 Years $ 10.51 112,065 $ 10.51
20010 $6.33-4$7.57 ...... 177,994 7.2 Years $ 7.50 71,197 § 7.50
2001 $6.08 - $9.50 ...... 193,956 8.1 Years $ 6.23 38,791 $ 6.23
2002 $9.10 - $14.95 .. ... 180,976 9.1 Years $ 9.25 — N/A

$3.57 - $14.95 .. ... 1,234,207 6.3 Years $ 8.18 666,519 $ 8.01
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(16) Stock OPTION PLAN - CONTINUED

The following is a summary of the activity of the stock option plans for the years 2000, 2001, and 2002.

2000 2001 2002
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Qutstanding, October1 ..... 1,004,173  $ 9.43 1,055,860 $9.45 1,214,504 §$ 7.83
Granted ............... 232,370 7.44 213,347 6.27 183,276 9.25
Cancelled .............. (108,645) 8.57 (23,855) 7.92 (10,868) 8.54
Exercised .. ............. (72,038) 4,12 (30,848) 4.68 (152,705)  6.62
Outstanding, September 30 .. 1,055,860 $ 9.45 1,214,504 $7.83 1,234,207 $ 8.18

The Company applies APB Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its plan. Accordingly, no com-
pensation cost has been recognized for its fixed stock option plans. Had compensation cost for the Company’s stock-based
compensation plans been determined consistent with SFAS Statement No. 123, the Company's net income and earnings per
share would have been reduced to the proforma amounts indicated below for the years ended September 30 (in thousands
except per share data):

2000 2001 2002
Net income As reported $ 8,457 $ 9,300 $10,206
Proforma 7,879 8,805 9,728
Diluted earnings per share  As reported $ 0.75 $ 0.85 $ 0.93
Proforma 0.70 0.80 0.89

The weighted average fair value per share of options granted in 2000, 2001 and 2002 amounted to $3.05, $2.98 and
$4.61, respectively. The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing mode!l with the following weighted-average assumptions used for grants in 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively: div-
idend vield of approximately 3.35%, 2.03% and 1.62%, expected volatility of approximately 33%, 42% and 51%, risk-free
interest rate of 6.06%, 5.60% and 4.60%, expected lives of 7.5 years and a vesting period of 5 years. For purposes of the
proforma calculation, compensation expense is recognized on a straight line basis over 5 years.

(17) Common Stock Divipenns

On November 10, 1999, the Company declared a 5% stock dividend aggregating approximately 321,000 shares. On
March 14, 2000, the Company declared a 10% stock dividend aggregating approximately 671,000 shares. On July 31, 2001,
the Company declared a 3 for 2 stock split in the form of a 50% stock dividend aggregating approximately 3,579,000
shares. All share and per share data has been retroactively restated to give effect to the common stock dividends.

(18) CasH D1vIDENDS

On each of December 16, 1998, March 24, 1999, June 30, 1999 and September 22, 1999, the Company declared quar-
terly cash dividends of $.04 per share. On December 23, 1999 the Company declared a quarterly cash dividend of $.042 per
share. On each of March 31, 2000, June 23, 2000, September 29, 2000, December 29, 2000 and March 21, 2001 the
Company declared quarterly cash dividends of $.043 per share. On each of June 27, 2001, September 26, 2001, December
19, 2001 and March 20, 2002 the Company declared quarterly cash dividends of $.05 per share. On each of June 19, 2002
and September 18, 2002, the Company declared quarterly cash dividends of $0.055 per share.

{19) LeGAL MATTERS

The Company is not a defendant in any lawsuits. The subsidiaries are defendants in lawsuits arising out of the normal
course of business. Based upon current information received from counsel representing the subsidiaries in these matters,
the Company believes none of the lawsuits would have a material impact on the Company's financiat status.
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(20) QuARTERLY FINANCIAL Data (UNAUDITED)

Quarterly{operating data for the years ended September 30 is summarized as follows (in thousands, except

share data): |

First Second Third Fourth
‘ Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2001:

Total interest income . .. .o v vennnn.. 15,655 15,409 15,003 14,188
Total interestexpense . ... . .. oL 9,445 9,046 7,912 6,920
Net interest inCOME .. ..vvvveeennnnnn.. 6,210 6,363 7,091 7,268
Provision for 10an 10SSeS .+« v v v ot 270 225 235 225
Nét interest income after provision for

[0aM L0SSES + v v e e e 5,940 6,138 6,856 7,043
Other iNCOME v e v e e eeeeeeeeaenn 1,638 2,247 2,080 1,937
General and administrative expenses .. ...... 4,100 4,948 5,122 5122
Earnings before income taxes ............. 3,478 3,437 3,814 3,858
INCOME TAXES « . . o oo oo e e 1,261 1,207 1,419 1,400
Nt INCOME © v v vt e e et eeeeieens, 2,217 2,230 2,395 2,458
Earnings per common share - diluted . .. ... .. .20 _ 21 .22 .22
Wéighted average shares outstanding-diluted . . . 10,997,000 10,964,000 10,958,000 10,985,000

First Second Third Fourth
‘ Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2002:

Total interest income . ... ...t 13,368 12,987 13,498 14,020
Total interest expense . ............... 5,662 5,153 5,278 5,753
Net interest income . ................ 7,706 7,834 8,220 8,267
Provision for loan losses . ............. 250 255 350 380
Net interest income after provision for

doan losses . ..ottt i e e 7,456 7,579 7,870 7,887
Otherincome . .........oouvenn.n.. 2,173 1,703 1,876 2,387
General and administrative expenses . ..... 5,730 5,422 5,640 6,032
Eérnings before income taxes ........... 3,899 3,860 4,106 4,242
INCOME aXeS . . .. vooverenenennnn, 1,439 1,393 1,513 1,556
Net income . ....vvveinnnnnnannnn 2,460 2,467 2,593 2,686
Earnings per common share - diluted . ... .. .23 .23 .24 24

Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted . 10,927,000 10,826,000 10,859,000 11,104,000

i




COASTAL FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued

(21) CoastaL FInancIAL CORPORATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (PARENT CoMPANY ONLY)

The following is condensed financial information of Coastal Financial Corporation (parent company only), the primary
asset of which is its investment in its bank subsidiary, for the periods indicated. (In thousands):

Coastal Financial Corporation
Condensed Balance Sheets
September 30, 2001 and 2002

2001 2002
Assets
Cash © o e e e e e $ 141 738
Investment in subsidiaries ... ... . e 58,961 67,946
Deferred tax @ssel . . o oo v ittt e 125 326
Other @ssets . o v vt e e 820 71
Total @ssets .ot i e e e e e e $ 60,047 69,081
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Accounts payable (principally dividends) ........... . ... ... ..., 730 626
Note payable ... o i i e e 2,069 2,069
Total stockholders' equity . ... ... i e 57,248 66,386
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity .. ............... $ 60,047 69,081
Coastal Financial Corporation
Condensed Statements of Operations
Years ended September 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002
2000 2001 2002
Income:
Interestincome ... .. ... i i e $ 5 3 1
Management fees . ...... ... 304 300 300
Dividends from subsidiary .. . ... ... .o S 3,090 4,600 3,470
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries .......... 5,423 4,732 6,751
Totalincome . ... 8,822 9,635 10,522
Expenses:
Professional fees . ....... .. ... i 71 80 79
Supplies and printing . . ... ... i . 62 39 58
Interest expense .. ... .o 162 152 84
Otherexpenses ... ... .. 90 91 96
Income tax benefit (credit) . ...... ... ... L, (20) (27) (1)
Total expenses . ... oot 365 335 316
NetinCome . ..o u i e $ 8,457 9,300 10,206
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(21) CoasTaL FINANCIAL CORPORATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (PARENT COMPANY ONLY), CONTINUED

Coastal Financial Corporation
3 Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
i Years ended September 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002

; 2000 2001 2002
Operating activities:
Netincome ........... ... § 8,457 9,300 10,206
Adjustmerits to reconcile net income to net cash provided by:
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiary ........ (5,423) (4,732) (6,751)
(Increase) decrease in otherassets ................. {6) (747) 548
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities ... ............ 151 (108) (104)
Tot?l cash provided by operating activities ......... 3,179 3,713 3,899
Financing activities:
Cash dividends to shareholders . .................... (1,912) (2,015) (2,222)
Treasury stock repurchases . ....................... (1,964) (2,134) (2,286)
Proceeds from stock options .. ....... . .. oL 570 106 1,203
Proceeds ﬁrom lineofcredit ...... ... ... 500 — —
Other financing activities, net . ........... ... .o L. 1 (1) 3
Total cash used by financing activities . .......... (2,805) (4,044) (3,302)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ...... 374 (331) 597
Cash and éash equivalents at beginning of the year ....... 98 472 141
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the years ........... $ 472 141 738

(22) CaRrrYING AMOUNTS AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair value of financial instruments as of September 30, 2001 and 2002 are summarized below:

2001 2002

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

(In thousands)

Financial Assets

Cash andicash equivalents ............. § 34,320 34,320 25,802 25,802
Investment securities .. ................ 2,000 2,000 2,014 2,014
Mortgage-backed securities . .. ............ 190,553 190,553 331,808 331,808
Loans receivable held forsale . ............ 16,274 16,274 18,694 18,694
Loans recéivable, net ....... i 488,754 508,802 536,851 541,697
FHLB sto¢k ......................... 7,624 7,624 10,559 10,559

]
Financial Liabilities

Deposits:!
Demand accounts . .. ..o v ivn i 331,972 331,972 382,400 382,400
Certificate accounts . ................. 198,392 199,908 254,681 258,509
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank ...... 140,036 137,166 189,669 197,918
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase . 18,703 18,703 36,884 36,884

Other bomowings ... ......... ... ... 2,069 2,069 2,069 2,069

Management has made estimates of fair value discount rates and estimated prepayment rates that it believes
to be reasonable based upon present market conditions. Changes in market interest and prepayment rates since
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(22) CARRYING AMOUNTS AND FAIR VALUE OF FInanciaL INSTRUMENTS — Continued

September 30, 2001 and 2002, could have a significant impact on the fair value presented and should be considered
when analyzing this financial data.

The Company had $82.6 million of off-balance sheet financial commitments as of September 30, 2002, which are com-
mitments to originate loans, unused consumer lines of credit and undisbursed portion of loans in process. Since these
obligations are based on current market rates, the carrying amount is considered to be a reasonable estimate of fair value.

The Company originates certain fixed rate residential loans with the intention of selling these loans. Between the time
that the Company enters into an interest rate lock or a commitment to originate a fixed rate residential loan with a poten-
tial borrower and the time the closed loan is sold, the Company is subject to variability in the market prices related to
these commitments. The Company believes that it is prudent to limit the variability of expected proceeds from the sales
through forward sales of “to be issued” mortgage backed securities and loans (“forward sales commitments”). The com-
mitment to originate fixed rate residential loans and forward sales commitments are freestanding derivative instruments.
They do not generally qualify for hedge accounting treatment so their fair value adjustments are recorded through the
income statement in net gains on sale of loans. The commitments to originate fixed rate conforming loans totaled $20.1
million at September, 30 2002. The fair value of these commitments was a gain of approximately $188,000 at September
30, 2002. The forward sales commitments totaled $18.0 million at September 30, 2002. The fair value of these commit-
ments was a loss of approximately $134,000 at September 30, 2002. In addition, the Company had sold options to pur-
chase mortgage-backed securities of $8.0 million. The fair value of these options was a loss of approximately $57,000.

Fair value estimates are made at the dates indicated above, based on relevant market information and information
about the financial instrument. These estimates do not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering for
sale the Company's entire holdings of a particular financial instrument. Because no active market exists for a significant
portion of the Company's financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding future expected loss
experience, current economic conditions, current interest rates and prepayment trends, risk characteristics of various finan-
cial instruments, and other factors. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of sig-
nificant judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in any of these assumptions used in cal-
culating fair value would also significantly affect the estimates. Changes in market interest rates and prepayment assump-
tions could significantly change the fair value.

Fair value estimates are based on existing on and off-balance sheet financial instruments without attempting to esti-
mate the value of anticipated future business and the value of assets and liabilities that are not considered financial instru-
ments. For example, the Company has significant assets and liabilities that are not considered financial assets or liabili-
ties including deposit franchise value, loan servicing portfolio, real estate, deferred tax liabilities, premises and equipment,
and goodwill. In addition, the tax ramifications related to the realization of the unrealized gains and losses can have a
significant effect on fair value estimates and have not been considered in any of these estimates.

(23) SaLE OF FLORENCE OFFICE

In the second fiscal quarter of 2000, the Company sold its Florence, South Carolina office to First Federal Savings
Association of Cheraw ("First Federal"). The office had deposits of $24.9 million. The Company received a deposit premi-
um from First Federal and recorded a gain, net of selling expenses, of $1.7 million. The Company funded the sale of the
deposits through the sale of loans, associated with this office of $10.9 million and increased borrowings, primarily through
brokered deposits. The Company recorded a gain on sale of loans of $60,000 related to this sale. In conjunction with the
sale of the Florence office, the Company has agreed not to compete in the Florence market for a pericd of four years.

(24) CoMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has a $16.0 million outstanding line of credit with a commercial bank at a variable rate of LIBOR plus
two percent. The line of credit is secured by 100% of the stock of the Bank. At September 30, 2002, the outstanding bal-
ance was approximately $2.1 million.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Forward Lookir;ig Statements

This report may contain certain "forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, that represent Coastal Financial Corporation’s {the Company) expectations or beliefs
concerning future events. Such forward-looking statements are about matters that are inherently subject to risks and uncer-
tainties. Factors that could influence the matters discussed in certain forward-looking statements include the timing and
amount of revenues that may be recognized by the Company, continuation of current revenue and expense trends (includ-
ing trends affecting charge-offs and provisions for loan losses), unforeseen changes in the Company's markets, legal and
regulatory changes, anfd general changes in the economy (particularly in the markets served by the Company). Because of
the risks and uncertainties inherent in forward looking statements, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on
them, whether included in this report or made elsewhere from time to time by the Company or on its behalf. Except as
may be required by apblicable law or regulation, the Company assumes no obligation to update any forward looking state-
ments. :

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company's siéniﬁcant accounting policies are set forth in Note One of the consolidated financial statements. Of
these policies, the Company considers its policy regarding the allowance for loan losses to be one of its most critical
accounting policies, because it requires many of management’s most subjective and complex judgments. The Company has
developed appropriatel policies and procedures for assessing the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses, recognizing that
this process requires a? number of assumptions and estimates with respect to its loan portfolio. The Company’s assessments
may be impacted in future periods by changes in economic conditions, the impact of regulatory examinations and the dis-
covery of information lwith respect to borrowers which were not known by management at the time of the issuance of the
consolidated financial|statements. For additional discussion concerning the Company’s allowance for loan losses and relat-
ed matters, see “Allowance for Loan Losses”.

General

The Company reported $10.2 million in net income for the year ended September 30, 2002, compared to $9.3 million
for the year ended September 30, 2001. Net interest income increased $5.1 million as a result of decreased interest income
of $6.4 million and a /decrease of $11.5 million in interest expense. Provision for loan losses increased from $955,000 for
the year ended September 30, 2001, to $1.2 million for the year ended September 30, 2002. Other income increased from
$7.9 million in fiscal 2001, to $8.1 million in 2002. General and administrative expenses increased $3.5 million or 18.3%,
for fiscal 2002, as compared to fiscal 2001.

Total assets increased from $763.2 million at September 30, 2001 to $950.8 million at September 30, 2002, or 24.6%.
Liquid assets, consisting of cash, interest-bearing deposits, and securities, increased from $226.9 million at September 30,
2001, to $359.6 million at September 30, 2002. Loans receivable increased 9.8% from $488.8 million at September 30,
2001, to $536.9 million at September 30, 2002. Total loan originations for fiscal 2002 were $418.2 million as compared
to $296.1 million for fiscal 2001.

The growth in liquid assets was funded by increased deposits of $106.7 million, increased advances from the Federal
Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") of Atlanta of $49.6 million and securities sold under agreements to repurchase of $18.2 mil-
lion. As a result of increased Sales Centers and a strong emphasis on growing local deposits during fiscal 2002, deposits
increased 20.1% from $530.4 million at September 30, 2001, to $637.1 million at September 30, 2002. During this same
period, transaction deposits (defined as noninterest bearing checking accounts and NOW accounts) increased $25.4 mil-
lion, money market checking accounts increased $19.3 million and certificate accounts increased $56.3 million.

As a result of $10.2 million in net earnings, less the cash dividends paid to shareholders of approximately $2.2 mil-
lion, treasury stock répurchases of approximately $2.3 million, and the net change in unrealized gain (loss) on securities
available for sale, nef: of income tax of $2.2 million, stockholders” equity increased from $57.2 million at September 30,
2001 to $66.4 million at September 30, 2002.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, the iCompany has maintained its liquidity at levels believed by management to be adequate to meet
requirements of normal operations, potential deposit outflows and strong loan demand and still allow for optimal invest-
ment of funds and return on assets. The following table summarizes future contractual obligations as of September 30,
2002. |
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Payment Due by Period

Less than 1-3 4-5 After 5
Total 1 Year Years Years Years

(Dollars in thousands)

Contractual Obligations

Time deposits .. ... ... ... ... § 254,681 $ 201,370 $ 47,842 $ 5450 § 19
Short-term borrowings . ........... 69,234 69,234 — —_ —
Long-termdebt .. ............... 159,388 — 36,735 9,493 113,160
Operating leases . ............... 821 166 312 91 252

Total contractual cash obligations ... § 484,124 § 270,770 $ 84,889 $ 15,034 $ 113,431

The principal sources of funds for the Company are cash flows from operations, consisting mainly of mortgage, con-
sumer and commercial loan payments, retail customer deposits, repurchase agreements securitized by mortgage-backed
securities and advances from the FHLB of Atlanta.

The principal use of cash flows is the origination of loans receivable. The Company originated loans receivable of
$247.2 million, $296.1 million and $418.2 million for the years ended September 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.
A large portion of these loan ariginations were financed through loan principal repayments which amounted to $139.9 mil-
lion, $233.7 million and $268.1 million for the years ended September 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. In addi-
tion, the Company has generally sold conforming fixed rate mortgage loans to correspondent financial institutions in the
secondary market to finance future loan originations. For the years ended September 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002, the
Company sold loans amounting to $33.7 million, $28.5 million and $13.9 million, respectively.

During fiscal 2002, the Company securitized $84.0 million of mortgage loans and reclassed them to securities avail-
able for sale. In accordance with SFAS No. 140, no gain was recognized related to the securitization, and mortgage ser-
vicing rights of approximately $1.4 million were recorded. The Company subsequently sold $81.2 million of these mort-
gage-backed securities to outside third parties and recognized a gain on sale of $1.1 million. The gain is included in
gains on sales of loans held for sale in the consolidated income statement. The proceeds from sale are included in pro-
ceeds from sales of mortgage-backed securities in the consolidated statement of cash flows. The Company has no
retained interest in the securities that were sold.

During 2002, the Company used deposit growth to restructure its debt. In fiscal 2002 deposits increased from $530.4
million at September 30, 2001, to $637.1 million at September 30, 2002. During fiscal 2002, the Company prepaid approx-
imately $59.3 million of advances from FHLB and incurred gross penalties of approximately $1.1 million which were includ-
ed in general and administrative expenses in the statement of operations. As a result of this and the repayment of other
short-term advances, the weighted average rate on FHLB advances decreased to 4.61% at September 30, 2002, compared
to 5.46% at September 30, 2001.

At September 30, 2002, the Company had commitments to originate $28.8 million in loans and $53.8 million in
unused lines of credit, which the Company expects to fund from normal operations. Traditionally, a significant portion of
the unused lines of credit may never be used by the Customer.

At September 30, 2002, the Company had $201.4 million of certificates of deposit which were due to mature within
one year. Based upon previous experience, the Company believes that a major portion of these certificates will be rede-
posited. At September 30, 2002, the Company had excess collateral pledged to the FHLB which would support additional
FHLB advance borrowings of $37.8 million. Additionally, at September 30, 2002, the Company had repurchase agreement
lines of credit and available collateral consisting of investment securities and mortgage-backed securities of $200.4 mil-
lion as well as federal funds lines available of $10.0 million.

As a condition of deposit insurance, current FDIC regulations require that the Bank calculate and maintain a mini-
mum regulatory capital requirement on a quarterly basis and satisfy such requirement at the calculation date and
throughout the ensuing quarter. The Bank’s tangible and core capital approximated $62.0 million at September 30,
2002, exceeding the Bank’s tangible and core requirements by $47.9 million and $24.2 million, respectively. At
September 30, 2002, the Bank's capital exceeded its current risk-based minimum capital requirement by $25.5 million.
The risk-based capital requirement may increase in the future. Also see Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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Results of Operations
Comparison of the Years Ended September 30, 2001 and 2002

General

Net earnings were $10.2 million ($0.93 per diluted share) for the year ended September 30, 2002, an increase of 9.7%
compared to $9.3 million ($0.85 per diluted share) for the year ended September 30, 2001. As a result of share repurchases
and the increase in net earnings, diluted earnings per share increased 9.4%. Net interest income increased $5.1 million pri-
marily as a result of adecrease in interest income of $6.4 million which was accompanied by a decrease in interest expense
of $11.5 million. J

Interest Income

Interest income for the year ended September 30, 2002, decreased 10.6% to $53.9 million as compared to $60,3 million
for the year ended September 30, 2001. The yield on interest-earning assets for the year ended September 30, 2001 was 8.26%
compared to 7.10% fqr the year ended September 30, 2002. The average yield on loans receivable for fiscal year 2002 was
7.58% compared to 8.80% in 2001. The yield on investments which includes Investments, Mortgage-Backed Securities,
Overnight Funds and Federal Funds, decreased to 6.15% for the fiscal year 2002 from 7.00% for fiscal year 2001. Total inter-
est-earning assets for ﬁscal year 2002 averaged $765.8 million compared to $738.5 million for the year ended September 30,
2001. The increase in|average interest-earning assets is primarily due to an increase in average loans receivable of approxi-
mately $9.7 million and average mortgage-backed and investment securities of approximately $21.3 million.

Interest Expense

Interest expense ,fon interest-bearing liabilities was $21.8 million for the year ended September 30, 2002, as compared
to $33.3 million in fiscal 2001. The cost of interest-bearing liabilities was 2.96% for the year ended September 30, 2002,
compared to 4.64% in|fiscal year 2001. The average cost of deposits for the year ended September 30, 2002, was 2.42% com-
pared to 4.03% for the year ended September 30, 2001. The cost of FHLB advances and reverse repurchase agreements for
fiscal 2002 was 5.11% and 2.39%, respectively, compared to 5.90% and 5.99%, respectively, for fiscal 2001. Total average
interest-bearing liabilities increased 2.8% from $717.9 million at September 30, 2001, to $738.1 million at September 30,
2002. The increase in average interest-bearing liabilities is due to an increase in average deposits of approximately $87.8
million. This was of‘fsét by a decrease in average FHLB advances of $38.4 million and average reverse repurchase agreements
of $30.5 million.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income was $32.0 million for the year ended September 30, 2002, an increase of $5.1 million, compared to
$26.9 million for the year ended September 30, 2001. The net interest margin increased to 4.14% for fiscal 2002 compared
to 3.62% for fiscal 2001. Average interest-earning assets increased $27.3 million while average interest-bearing liabilities
increased $20.2 million. During fiscal 2002, interest rates have decreased. At September 30, 2001 and September 30, 2002,
the prime rate of interest was 6.0% and 4.75%, respectively. With the reduction in interest rates, resulting from the Federal
Reserve Board's decision to reduce the prime rate by 125 basis points, it is expected that the Company’s vield on interest
earning assets and cost of deposits and borrowing will decline in fiscal 2003. Consequently, it is expected that a substantial
portion of the Company’s loan portfolio will be subject to refinancing at lower rates. Should, as a result of continued rate
reductions by the Federal Reserve, refinancing of loans at lower rates and repricing of loans tied to prime or treasury rates
outpace the repn’cingf of deposits and borrowings, the Company could experience a significantly reduced net interest margin
in the future. |

. . |
Provision for Loan Losses

As a result of growth in loans receivable, the Company’s provision for loan losses increased from $955,000 for fiscal
2001 to $1.2 million| for fiscal 2002. The allowance for loan losses as a percentage of loans was 1.42% at September 30,
2002 and 2001. Loans delinquent 90 days or more were .63% of total loans at September 30, 2002, compared. to .64% at
September 30, 2001. The allowance for (oan losses was 224% of loans delinquent more than 90 days at September 30,
2002, compared to 220% at September 30, 2001. Management believes that the current level of the allowance for loan
losses is adequate considering the composition of the loan portfolio, the portfolio’s loss experience, delinquency trends,
current regional and: local economic conditions and other factors. Also see “Nonperforming Assets” and "Allowance for
Loan Losses." ‘

!
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Other Income

In fiscal 2001, total other income increased slightly from $7.9 million for the period ended September 30, 2001, to
$8.1 million for the period ended September 30, 2002. As a result of increased transaction deposit accounts, fees and ser-
vice charges on loans and deposit accounts was $3.1 million for fiscal 2002, compared to $2.6 million for fiscal 2001. Due
to a decreased long-term interest rate environment which has resulted in increased fixed-rate mortgage originations, gain
on sale of loans was $1.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2002, compared to $1.3 million for the year ended
September 30, 2001. Gain on sale of mortgage-backed securities, net was $238,000 for fiscal 2002, compared to $727,000
for fiscal 2001. Other income decreased from $1.7 million for the year ended September 30, 2001, to $1.6 million for the
year ended September 30, 2002.

Other Expense

General and administrative expenses were $22.8 million for fiscal 2002 as compared to $19.3 million for fiscal 2001.
Salaries and employee benefits increased to $12.5 million for fiscal 2002 as compared to $10.5 million for fiscal 2001, or
18.7%, primarily due to normal increases and the costs of staffing for new offices. During fiscal 2002, Coastal Federal Bank
added offices in Loris and Pawleys Island, South Carolina. Also as a result of the office additions, net occupancy, furniture
and fixtures and data processing expense increased $1.0 million for fiscal 2002, as compared to fiscal 2001. Other expenses
increased from $3.5 million in fiscal 2001 to $4.1 million in fiscal 2002. The increase is primarily due to increased expens-
es related to the servicing of deposit accounts.

Income Taxes

Income taxes increased from $5.3 million in fiscal 2001 to $5.9 million in fiscal 2002 as a result of increased earnings
before income taxes.

Results of Operations
Comparison of the Years Ended September 30, 2000 and 2001

General

Net earnings were $9.3 million ($0.85 per diluted share) for the year ended September 30, 2001, an increase of 10.0%
compared to $8.5 million ($0.75 per diluted share) for the year ended September 30, 2000. As a result of share repurchases
and the increase in net earnings, diluted earnings per share increased 13.3%. Net interest income increased $2.5 million pri-
marily as a result of an increase in interest income of $2.2 million which was accompanied by a decrease in interest expense
of $313,000.

Interest Income

Interest income for the year ended September 30, 2001, increased 3.7% to $60.3 million as compared to $58.1 million
for the year ended September 30, 2000. The yield on interest-earning assets for the year ended September 30, 2000 was
8.34% compared to 8.26% for the year ended September 30, 2001. The average yield on loans receivable for fiscal year 2001
was 8.80% compared to 8.74% in 2000. The yield on investments which includes Investments, Mortgage-Backed Securities,
Overnight Funds and Federal Funds, decreased to 7.00% for the fiscal year 2001 from 7.33% for fiscal year 2000. Total inter-
est-earning assets for fiscal year 2001 averaged $738.5 million compared to $705.0 million for the year ended September 30,
2000. The increase in average interest-earning assets is primarily due t¢ an increase in average loans receivable of approxi-
mately $18.3 million and mortgage-backed and investment securities of approximately $12.6 million.

Interest Expense

Interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities was $33.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2001, as compared
to $33.6 million in fiscal 2000. The cost of interest-bearing liabilities was 4.64% for the year ended September 30, 2001,
compared to 4.84% in fiscal year 2000. The average cost of deposits for the year ended September 30, 2001, was 4.03% com-
pared to 3.88% for the year ended September 30, 2000. The cost of FHLB advances and reverse repurchase agreements for
fiscal 2001 was 5.90% and 5.99%, respectively, compared to 6.12% and 6.38%, respectively, for fiscal 2000. Total average
interest-bearing liabilities increased 3.4% from $694.5 million at September 30, 2000, to $717.9 million at September 30,
2001. The increase in average interest-bearing liabilities is due to an increase in average deposits of approximately $75.3
million and in average FHLB advances of $10.8 million. This was offset by a decrease in average reverse repurchase agree-
ments of $62.3 million.
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Net Interest Incomei

Net interest income was $26.9 million for the year ended September 30, 2001, an increase of $2.5 million, compared to
$24.4 million for the year ended September 30, 2000. The net interest margin increased to 3.62% for fiscal 2001 compared
to 3.50% for fiscal 2000. Average interest-earning assets increased $33.5 million while average interest-bearing liabilities
increased $23.4 million. During fiscal 2001, interest rates have decreased significantly. At September 30, 2000 and September
30, 2001, the prime rate of interest was 9.50% and 6.0%, respectively. With the reduction in interest rates, resulting from
the Federal Reserve Board’s decision to reduce the prime rate by 350 basis points, it is expected that the Company's yield on
interest earning assets and cost of deposits and borrowing will decline in fiscal 2002. Consequently, it is expected that a sub-
stantial portion of the Company’s loan portfolio will be subject to refinancing at lower rates. Should, as a result of contin-
ued rate reductions by the Federal Reserve, refinancing of loans at lower rates and repricing of loans tied to prime or trea-
sury rates outpace the repricing of deposits and borrowings, the Company could experience a significantly reduced net inter-
est margin in the future,

Provision for Loan Uosses

The Company's prov1510n for loan losses decreased from $978,000 for fiscal 2000 to $955,000 for fiscal 2001. The
allowance for loan tosses as a percentage of loans was 1.42% at September 30, 2001 compared to 1.35% at September
30, 2000. Loans delynquent 90 days or more were .64% of total loans at September 30, 2001, compared to .92% at
September 30, 2000. The allowance for loan losses was 220% of loans delinquent more than 90 days at September 30,
2001, compared to 148% at September 30, 2000. Management believes that the current level of the allowance for loan
losses is adequate cansidering the composition of the loan portfolio, the portfolio’s loss experience, delinquency trends,
current regional and {local economic conditions and other factors. Also see "Nonperforming Assets" and "Allowance for
Loan Losses."

Other Income

In fiscal 2001, total other income increased from $5.9 million for the period ended September 30, 2000, to $7.9 mil-
lion for the period ended September 30, 2001. Fees and service charges on loans and deposit accounts was $2.6 million
for fiscal 2001, compared to $2.1 million for fiscal 2000. Due to a decreasing long-term interest rate environment which
has resulted in mcreased fixed-rate mortgage originations, gain on sale of loans was $1.3 million for the year ended
September 30, 2001, compared to $631,000 for the year ended September 30, 2000. Gain on sale of mortgage-backed
securities, net was $!727 000 for fiscal 2001, compared to losses of $1.6 million for fiscal 2000. This was a result of the
restructuring of a portion of the available for sale investment portfolio. The losses were offset by a gain on the sale of
the Florence office deposits of $1.7 million in fiscal 2000. Other income increased from $1.5 million for the year ended
September 30, 2000, to $1.7 million for the year ended September 30, 2001.

Other Expense ;

General and administrative expenses were $19.3 million for fiscal 2001 as compared to $16.2 million for fiscal 2000.
Salaries and employee benefits increased to $10.5 million for fiscal 2001 as compared to $9.1 million for fiscal 2000, or
15.3%, primarily due to normal increases and the costs of staf'ﬁng for four new offices. Also as a result of the four office
additions, net occupancy, furniture and fixtures and data processing expense increased $83,000 for fiscal 2001, as compared
to fiscal 2000. Otheriexpenses increased from $3.0 million in fiscal 2000 to $3.5 million in fiscal 2001. The increase is due
to increased expenses related to the servicing of deposit accounts. Included in general and administrative expenses are penal-
ties from the early repayment of FHLB advances of $37.7 million during fiscal 2001.

Income Taxes

Income taxes inereased from $4.7 million in fiscal 2000 to $5.3 million in fiscal 2001 as a result of increased earnings
before income taxes.

Non-performijhg Assets

Non-performing assets were $4.6 million at September 30, 2002 compared to $5.6 million at September 30, 2001. Loans
past due 90 days or more increased from $3.3 million at September 30, 2001, to $3.5 million at September 30, 2002. Real
estate acquired throligh foreclosure decreased from $2.4 million at September 30, 2001, to $1.0 million at September 30,
2002. |

At September 30, 2001, impaired loans totaled $3.4 million. There were $3.2 million in impaired loans at September 30,
2002. Included in the allowance for loan tosses at September 30, 2001 was $281,000 related to impaired loans compared
to $194,000 at September 30, 2002. The average recorded investment in impaired loans for the year ended September 30,
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2001 was $3.6 million compared to $3.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2002. Interest income recognized on
impaired loans in fiscal 2001 was $120,000. Interest income recognized on impaired loans in
fiscal 2002 was $36,000.

Loans are reviewed on a regular basis and an allowance for uncollectible interest is established on loans where collec-
tion is questionable, generally when such loans become 90 days delinquent. Loan balances for which interest amounts have
been reserved and all loans more than 90 days delinguent are placed on non-accrual status. Typically, payments received on
a non-accrual loan are applied to the outstanding principal or recognized as interest based upon the collectability of the loan
as determined by management.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The adequacy of the allowance is analyzed on a quarterly basis. For purposes of this analysis, adequacy is defined as a
level of reserves sufficient to absorb probable losses inherent in the portfolio. The methodology employed for this analysis
considers historical loan loss experience, the results of loan reviews, current economic conditions, and other qualitative and
quantitative factors that warrant current consideration in determining an adequate allowance.

The evaluation of the allowance is segregated into general allocations and specific allocations. For general allocations,
the portfolio is segregated into risk-similar segments for which historical loss ratios are calculated and adjusted for identi-
fied trends or changes in current portfolio characteristics. Historical loss ratios are calculated by product type for consumer
loans (installment and revolving), mortgage loans, and commercial loans. To allow for modeling error, a range of probable
loss ratios is then derived for each segment. The resulting percentages are then applied to the dollar amounts of the loans
in each segment to arrive at each segment's range of probable loss levels.

Certain nonperforming loans are individually assessed for impairment under SFAS 114 and assigned specific allocations.
Other identified high-risk loans or credit relationships based on internal risk ratings are also individually assessed and
assigned specific allocations.

The general allocation also includes a component for probable losses inherent in the portfolio, based on management’s
analysis, that are not fully captured elsewhere in the allowance. This component serves to address the inherent estimation
and imprecision risk in the methodology as well as address management’s evaluation of various factors or conditions not oth-
erwise directly measured in the evaluation of the general and specific allocations. Such factors or conditions may include
evaluation of current general economic and business conditions; geographic, collateral, or other concentrations; system, pro-
cedural, policy, or underwriting changes; experience of lending staff; entry into new markets or new product offerings; and
results from internal and external portfolio examinations.

The allocation of the allowance to the respective loan segments is an approximation and not necessarily indicative of
future losses or future allocations. The entire allowance is available to absorb losses occurring in the overall loan portfolio.

Assessing the adequacy of the allowance is a process that requires considerable judgment. Management’s methodology
and judgments are based on the information currently available and includes numerous assumptions about current events,
which we believe to be reasonable, but which may or may not be valid. Thus, there can be no assurance that loan losses in
future periods will not exceed the current allowance amount or that future increases in the atlowance will not be required.
No assurance can be given that management's ongoing evaluation of the loan portfolio in light of changing economic con-
ditions and other relevant circumstances will not require significant future additions to the allowance, thus adversely affect-
ing the operating results of the Company. Management believes that the current level of the allowance for Loan losses is
presently adequate considering the composition of the loan portfolio, the portfolio's loss experience, delinquency trends, cur-
rent regional and local economic conditions and other factors.

The allowance is also subject to examination and adequacy testing by regulatory agencies, which may consider such fac-
tors as the methodology used to determine adequacy and the size of the allowance relative to that of peer institutions, and
other adequacy tests. In addition, such regulatory agencies could require us to adjust our allowance based on information
available to them at the time of their examination.

The Company established provisions for loan losses for the years ended September 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002, of
$978,000, $955,000 and $1.2 million, respectively. For the years ended September 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002, the Company
had net charge-offs of $319,000, $860,000 and $511,000, respectively. Net charge-offs as a percentage of average out-
standing loans were .06%, .17%, and .10% for fiscal years ended 2000, 2001 and 2002. At September 30, 2002, the Company
had an allowance for loan tosses of $7.9 million, which was 1.42% of net loans.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of operations, the Company engages in a variety of financial transactions that, in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, are not recorded in the financial statements, or are recorded in amounts that dif-
fer from the notionalj amounts. These transactions involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit, interest rate, and liguidi-
ty risk. Such transactions are used by the Company for general corporate purposes or for Customer needs. Corporate purpose
transactions are used!to help manage credit, interest rate, and liquidity risk or to optimize capital. Customer transactions are
used to manage Customers’ requests for funding.

The Company's @ff-batance sheet arrangements, which principally include lending commitments and derivatives are
described below. At September 30, 2001 and 2002, the Company had no interests in non-consolidated special purpose enti-
ties. 3

Lending Commitments. Lending commitments include loan commitments, standby letters of credit and unused business
credit card lines. These instruments are not recorded in the consolidated balance sheet until funds are advanced under the
commitments. The Cojmpany provides these lending commitments to Customers in the normal course of business.

Loan commitments for residential housing and land totaled $28.8 million. For retail Customers, loan commitments are
generally lines of credit secured by residential property. At September 30, 2002 retail loan commitments totaled $37.2 mil-
lion. Standby letters lof credit are conditional commitments to guarantee performance, typically contract or financial integri-
ty, of a Customer tola third party and totaled $4.0 million at September 30, 2002. Commercial lines of credit and unused
business and personal credit card lines, which totaled $12.7 million at September 30, 2002, are generally for short-term
borrowings.

The Company apjph'es essentially the same credit policies and standards as it does in the lending process when making
these commitments. |

Derivatives. In accordance with SFAS No. 133, the Company records derivatives at fair value, as either assets or liabili-
ties, on the consolidated balance sheet. Derivative transactions are measured in terms of the notional amount, but this
amount is not recorded on the balance sheet and is not, when viewed in isolation, a meaningful measure of the risk profile
of the instrument. The notional amount is not exchanged, but is used only as the basis upon which interest and other pay-
ments are calculated!

At September 30 2002, the fair value of derivative assets and liabilities totaled $188,000 and $191,000 respectively.
The related notional amounts, which are not recorded on the consolidated balance sheet, totaled $20 million for the deriva-
tive assets and $26 million for the derivative liabilities.

Interest Rate Risk Disclosure

The Bank's Asset Liability Management Committee ("ALCO") monitors and considers methods of managing exposure to
interest rate risk. The ALCO consists of members of the Board of Directors and Senior Leadership of the Company and meets
quarterly. The Bank's exposure to interest rate risk is reviewed on at least a quarterly basis by the ALCO. Interest rate risk
exposure is measured using interest rate sensitivity analysis to determine the Bank's change in net portfolio value in the
event of hypothetical changes in interest rates. The ALCO is charged with the responsibility to maintain the level of sensi-
tivity of the Bank's net portfolio value within Board approved limits.

Net portfolio value (NPV) represents the market value of portfolio equity and is equal to the market value of assets minus
the market value of liabilities, with adjustments made for off-balance sheet items over a range of assumed changes in mar-
ket interest rates. The Bank's Board of Directors has adopted an interest rate risk policy which establishes maximum allow-
able decreases in NPV in the event of a sudden and sustained one hundred to four hundred basis point increase or decrease
in market interest rates. The following table presents the Bank’s projected change in NPV as computed by the OTS for the var-
fous rate shock levels as of September 30, 2002.
|
|
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Board Limit Board Limit Market Value Market Value

. Minimum NPV Maximum Of Assets Portfolio Equity NPV
Change in Interest Rates Ratio Decline in NPV 9/30/02 9/30/02 Ratio
300 basis point rise 5.00% 400 BPS $ 953,898 $ 82,297 8.63 %
200 basis point rise 6.00% 300 BPS $§ 972,427 $ 94,417 9.71 %
100 basis point rise 6.00% 250 BPS $ 987,717 $ 101,322 10.26 %
No Change 6.00% $ 996,837 $ 102,380 10.27 %
100 basis point decline 6.00% 250 BPS $1,000,615 $ 97,457 9.74 %
200 basis point decline 6.00% 300 BPS N/A N/A N/A
300 basis point decline 6.00% 350 BPS N/A N/A N/A

The preceding table indicates that at September 30, 2002, in the event of a sudden and sustained increase in prevail-
ing market interest rates, the Bank’s NPV would be expected to decrease, and that in the event of a sudden decrease in pre-
vailing market interest rates, the Bank’s NPV would be expected to change minimally. Values for the 200 and 300 basis point
decline are not indicated due to the current level of interest rates. At September 30, 2002, the Bank’s estimated changes in
NPV were within the limits established by the Board of Directors.

Computation of prospective effects of hypothetical interest rate changes are based on numerous assumptions, including
relative levels of market interest rates, loan prepayments and deposit decay, and should not be relied upon as indicative of
actual results. Further, the computations do not contemplate any actions the ALCO could undertake in response to sudden
changes in interest rates,

The Bank also uses interest rate sensitivity gap analysis to monitor the relationship between the maturity and repricing
of its interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Interest rate sensitivity gap is defined as the difference between
the amount of interest-earning assets maturing or repricing within a specific time period and the amount of interest-bearing
liabilities maturing or repricing within the same time period. A gap is considered positive when the amount of interest-rate-
sensitive assets exceeds the amount of interest-rate-sensitive liabilities. Generally, during a period of rising rates, a positive
gap would result in an increase in net interest income. Conversely, during a period of falling interest rates, a positive gap
would result in a decrease in net interest income. It is ALCO’s goal to maintain reasonable balance between exposure to inter-
est rate fluctuations and earnings.

Impact of New Accounting Pronouncement

In July 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 141, Business Combinations, and Statement No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets. Statement 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for all business combinations ini-
tiated after June 30, 2001 as well as all purchase method business combinations completed after June 30, 2001. Statement
141 also specifies criteria intangible assets acquired in a purchase method business combination must meet to be recognized
and reported apart from goodwill. Statement 142 requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no
longer be amortized, but instead tested for impairment at least annually in accordance with the provisions of Statement 142.
Statement 142 also requires that intangible assets with estimable useful lives be amortized over their respective estimated
useful lives to their estimated residual values, and reviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting
for Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of. The Company adopted statement 141 in
July 2001 and adopted statement 142 on October 1, 2001. The Company does not have any intangible assets affected by
these standards.

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets which addresses the financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived
assets. While SFAS 144 supercedes SFAS 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets
to Be Disposed Of, it retains many of the fundamental provisions of that Statement. The provisions of SFAS 144 are effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, and interim periods within those fiscal
years. The Company adopted SFAS 144 on October 1, 2002 with no impact to its financial statements.

In April 2002, The FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections” (“SFAS 145”). SFAS 145 rescinds SFAS No. 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses from
Extinguishments of Debt” (“SFAS 4”), and an amendment of SFAS 4, SFAS No. 64, “Extinguishments of Debt Made to Satisfy
Sinking-Fund Requirements.” SFAS 145 requires that gains and losses from extinguishment of debt should be classified as an
extraordinary item only if they meet the criteria of FASB Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations-Reporting the
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Effects of Disposal of a Segment of Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions”
(“FASB Opinion 30”). iApplying the provisions of FASB Opinion 30 will distinguish transactions that are part of an entity's
recurring operations from those that are unusual or infrequent or that meet the criteria for classification as an extraordinary
item. The provisions of SFAS 145 are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002
and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company adopted SFAS 145 on July 1, 2002. During fiscal 2001, the
Company prepaid approximately $37.7 million of advances from FHLB and incurred gross penalties of approximately $1.1 mil-
lion. During fiscal 2002, the Company prepaid approximately $59.3 million of advances from FHLB and incurred gross penal-
ties of approximately $1.1 million. Prepayment penalties were included in general and administrative expenses in the state-
ment of operations,

In September 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”
(“SFAS 146"), which aﬁdresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities and nul-
lifies Emerging Issues|Task Force Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other
Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS 146 applies to costs associated with an
exit activity that does not involve an entity newly acquired in a business combination or with a disposal activity covered by
SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” Those costs include, but are not limited to,
the following: a) termination benefits provided to current employees that are involuntarily terminated under the terms of a
benefit arrangement ﬁhat, in substance, is not an ongoing benefit arrangement or an individual deferred compensation con-
tract (hereinafter referred to as one-time termination benefits), b) costs to terminate a contract that is not a capital lease,
and c) costs to consolidate facilities or relocate employees. This Statement does not apply to costs associated with the retire-
ment of a long-lived asset covered by SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” A liability for a cost asso-
ciated with an exit oridisposal activity shall be recognized and measured initially at its fair value in the period in which the
lability is incurred. Altiability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity is incurred when the definition of a lia-
bility is met in accordance with FASB Concepts Statements No. 6, “Elements of Financial Statements.” The provisions of this
Statement are effectifve for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002, with early application
encouraged. The impact of adoption on the Company is not known at this time.

In October 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 147, “Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions an amendment of FASB
Statements No. 72 and 144 and FASB Interpretation No. 9” (“SFAS 147”). SFAS 147 removes acquisitions of financial insti-
tutions from the scope of both FASB Statements No. 72 (“SFAS 72") and FASB Interpretation No. 9 and requires that those
transactions be accounted for in accordance with FASB Statements No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets,” except for transactions between two or more mutual enterprises. Thus, the requirement in SFAS
72 to recognize (and {subsequently amortize) any excess of the fair value of liabilities assumed over the fair value of tangi-
ble and identifiable assets acquired as an unidentifiable intangible asset no longer applies to acquisitions within the scope
of SFAS 72. In additibn, SFAS 147 amends FASB Statement No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets” (“SFAS 144"}, to include in its scope long-term customer-relationship intangible assets of financial institutions
such as depositor-and borrower-relationship intangible assets and credit cardholder intangible assets. Consequently, those
intangible assets are|subject to the same undiscounted cash flow recoverability test and impairment loss recognition and
measurement provisions that SFAS 144 requires for other long-lived assets that are held and used.

The provisions of; SFAS 147 are effective for financial statements issued on or after October 1, 2002 and early adoption
is permitted. The Company adopted this statement on October 1, 2002 with no impact.

Effects of Inflation and Changing Prices

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
which require the measurement of financial position and results of operations in terms of historical dollars, without consid-
eration of change in the relative purchasing power over time due to inflation. Unlike most industrial companies, virtually all
of the assets and liabilities of a financial institution are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates have a more signifi-
cant impact on a financial institution’s performance than the effect of inflation. Interest rates do not necessarily change in
the same magnitude as the price of goods and services.

Capital Standards and Regulatory Matters

The Bank’s capital standards include: (1) a leverage limit requiring all OTS chartered financial institutions to maintain core
capital in an amount not less than 4% of the financial institution’s total assets; (2) a tangible capital requirement of not less
than 1.5% of total asjsets; and (3) a risk-based capital requirement of not less than 8.0% of risk weighted assets. For further
information concernin"‘g the Bank’s capital standards, refer to Note 13 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Corporate Information

Common Stock and Dividend Information

The common stock of Coastal Financial Corporation is quoted
through the Nasdjq Stock Market under the symbol CFCP. For
information contact:

Herzog, Hein“‘e, Geduld, Inc. at 1.800.523.4936

Hofer & Amett, Inc. at 1.800.774.8723

Raymond Jarhes Financial Services at 1.843.918.7600
Monroe Secuﬁties, Inc. at 1.800.766.5560

Knights Secujn’ties at 212.336.8690

Spear, Leeds!& Kellogg at 1.800.526.3160

Trident Securities at 1.800.222.2618

As of November 29, 2002, the Corporation had 1,026
shareholders and 10,606,948 shares of common stock out-
standing. This does not reflect the number of persons or enti-
ties who hold stock in nominee or "street name."

The Company’s ability to pay dividends depends primarily
on the ability of Coastal Federal Bank to pay dividends to the
Company. See notes 13 and 14 of Consolidated Financial
Statements for further information.

Market Price of; Common Stock

The table below reflects the high and low bid stock prices pub-
lished by Nasdagq for each quarter. The prices have been adjust-
ed to reflect stock dividends.

HIGH Low CASH
1 BID BID DIVIDEND
Fiscal Year 2002:
First Quarter | $990 §$890 $0.050

Second Quarter 9.61 9.26 0.050
Third Quarter - 15.04 9.14 0.055
Fourth Quarter 15.45 13.00 0.055

Fiscal Year 200,1:

First Quarter $733 §$5.25 $0.043
Second Quarter 10.50 6.17  0.043
Third Quarter | 933 711 0.050

0.050

Fourth Quarter - 10.25 8.00

Form 10-K ‘

A copy of Coastal Financial Corporation’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K, as filed with the Securities Exchange Commission
for the year ended September 30, 2002, may be obtained with-
out a charge by writing to the Shareholder Relations Officer at
the Corporate Address.

Annual Meeting of Shareholders

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Coastal Financial
Corporation will be held at the Ocean Reef Resort (formerly
Myrtle Beach Martinique), 7100 North Ocean Boulevard, Myrtle
Beach, South Carolina, on Tuesday, January 28, 2003 at 2:00
p.m., Eastern Standard Time.

Additional Information

If you are receiving duplicate mailing of shareholder reports
due to multiple accounts, we can consolidate the mailings
without affecting your account registration. To do this, or for
additionat information, contact the Shareholder Relations
Office, at the Corporate address shown below.

Corporate Offices

Coastal Financial Corporation

2619 Qak Street

Myrtle Beach, South Carolina 29577
843.205.2000

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Registrar and Transfer Company
P.0. Box 1010

Cranford, NJ 07016
1.800.866.1340 Ext. 2514

Independent Certified Public Accountants
KPMG LLP

55 Beattie Place, Suite 900

Greenville, South Carolina 29601

Special Counsel

Muldoon Murphy & Faucette LLP
5101 Wisconsin Avenue
Washington, DC 20016

Shareholder Relations Officer
Susan J. Cooke

Coastal Financial Corporation

2619 Oak Street

Myrtle Beach, South Carolina 29577
843.205.2000

Coastal Financiél Corporation is an equal opportunity employer and pledges equal opportunities without regard to religion, citizen-
ship, race, color, creed, sex, age, national origin, disability or status as a disabled or Vietnam-Era veteran.

COASTAL : - Securities are offered exclusively through Raymond James
T - * g" CﬂASTAL Q J S Financial Services, Inc., membi er¥wl lgP ar¥mdependent
FEDERAL 7 ENANCIAL SERVICES. broker/dealer, and are not insured Ythe F’DI C or any other
s . =7 \nvestor Services, Inc. A50/s bank insurance, are not deposits or obligations of the bank are

BANK v

- A subsidiary of Coastal Finandial Corporation
The right bank for you. | tBSER

Committed to your ﬁnanclal future.

nat quaranteed by the bank, and are subject to risk, including
the ossible [oss of principal.
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